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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Million Stars Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EE®RE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors of Million Stars
Holdings Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
am pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2022 (“FY2022") to our
shareholders and investors.

The Group is an integrated group specialising in internet
advertising agency services during the year. The Group principally
provides internet advertising services to different customer
segments in mainland China. Affected by the macroeconomic
environment deterioration of China in 2019, slowdown of games
copyright issuance, fierce competition of internet advertising
industry, and high industry concentration, profit margin of small
and medium-sized independent advertising operators has been
squeezed.

The outbreak of the Epidemic has caused disruptions to many
industries in the PRC as well as other countries and regions.
Despite the challenges, governments and international
organisations have implemented a series of measures to contain
the Epidemic. The Group will closely monitor the development of
the Epidemic and assess its impact on its operations.

During the year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$46,442,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 77.8%, mainly due to the shrinking sales volume of
internet advertising agency services offered by its wholly-owned
subsidiary. During the year, the Group recorded loss after tax of
approximately HK$99,493,000.

Seizing the opportunity of the rapid development of the Internet,
the Group will continue to adjust the investments in the internet
advertising business and seek to tap on new customers, businesses
and revenue streams. Going forward, the Group plans to develop
overseas cryptocurrency business to deliver better returns to
shareholders.
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wish to take this opportunity to express our gratitude for the
support from our business partners, investors and customers. |
would also like to thank our dedicated management and staff for
their contributions to the Group.

Zhu Yongjun
Chairman

19 January 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

INTRODUCTION

The Group is an integrated group, which was principally engaged
in internet advertising agency services, the build-up and operation
of a digitalization empowerment platform, and digital assets
business during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of internet advertising agency services, including the
provision of game promotion, big data support, integrated
marketing solutions, local language support and other services for
its customers. During the second half of 2021, the Group has
relied on its team with expertise in the field of digital assets
business to expand its overseas cryptocurrency business. In March
2022, in response to the government policies in Mainland China,
the Group made timely investment in the research and
development and build-up of a digitalization empowerment
platform, and upgraded the internet advertising empowerment
system to provide government and enterprises with various
services such as personalized advertising, creation and
management of product sales channels, and customer loyalty
enhancement.

Internet Advertising Agency Services

Million Stars Internet Media Limited (“MSIM”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, develops the overseas internet advertising
market. Through global mainstream online platforms, including
Facebook and Google, MSIM provides customers with access to
global advertising, including the provision of game promotion, big
data support, integrated marketing solutions, local language
support and account stabilisation services for its customers.
Seizing the opportunity of the rapid development of the Internet,
the Group will continue to adjust the investments in the internet
advertising business and seek to tap on revenue streams of the
Internet.

Digitalization Empowerment Platform

Following the rollout of the overseas internet advertising agency
services, the Group timely launched the digitalization
empowerment system to tap the advertising market in Mainland
China. The system incorporates online and offline functions. In
particular, “Million Stars Promotion Machine” (& £ 12 $4 #), an
intelligent advertising device that comes with a product vending
function, was a major breakthrough.

“Million Stars Promotion Machine” can be installed indoors or
outdoors, and is connected to various payment systems for
customers’ convenience to pay on mobile phones. The product
has been well received by the market since launch.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Digital Assets Business

With professional management and team in the field of digital
assets business that possess specialized knowledge in the
structure, quality and operation of cryptocurrency mining
equipment, the Company is fed with the supply and demand
information in the market. The management of the Company
closely monitors the movement and volatility of the prices of
digital currencies to formulate reasonable and competitive pricings
with reference to the conditions of the competitors.

Since the end of 2021, a new round of COVID-19 pandemic has
continued to spread in Mainland China. In respond to this, the
Chinese government has implemented precise prevention and
control measures, which has certain effects on the Group’s
business activities in the PRC. In particular, Shanghai Municipality,
where the headquarter of the Group is located, locked down in
March to June 2022 due to COVID-19 pandemic, leading to the
suspension of intra-city transportation and inter-city logistics,
which greatly affected business operations.

During the period, total operating income of the Group of
approximately HK$46.4 million was achieved, in which revenue
from internet advertising agency services amounted to HK$39.6
million, and revenue from the digital assets business under the
mining business and custody business was HK$6.8 million during
the reporting period.

OUTLOOK

Internet advertising agency services business undertaken by the
Group are still progressing normally. The Group and its wholly-
owned subsidiary will continue to develop its overseas internet
advertising market, and with the opportunities emerged from the
new rural areas, new retail and new consumption in the Mainland
China that facilitate the digital empowerment to the real
industries, the Group plans to expand its advertisement services
into the following new segments, including offline mobile devices
advertising, digitalized smart terminals advertising, offline on-
screen advertising, 020 platforms advertising and in-app
advertising, through which more suppliers and government
authorities could be served with our advertising services and more
target audiences could be reached, and hence, the business of
agricultural products and other consumer goods could be
extended.

In the second half of 2021, the Group gradually expanded its
scope of business to digital assets business from its single internet
advertising agency services. As there will be enormous room of
development and promising prospects for the digital assets
business in the future, the Group will leverage the existing
competitive edges and rely on the professional technology,
operation and marketing teams to continuously increase its
investment on the construction of global supercomputing centres
so as to build an ecosystem based on computing power, which
provides global customers with professional hosting of
supercomputing servers, and the rental and sales of cloud
computing and cloud storage services. In the future, apart from
continuous investment on cryptocurrency servers purchasing, the
Group will endeavor to expand the global trade and development
of supercomputing servers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

The Group will continue to proactively seek for potential business
opportunities, and explore new customers, businesses and sources
of revenue to deliver better returns to the shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue principally represented income derived from
the provision of internet advertising agency services and digital
assets business.

The Group has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$46.4
million for the year ended 30 June 2022, representing a decrease
of approximately 77.8% as compared with about HK$209.3
million for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Revenue generated from the Internet advertising agency services
business segment was approximately HK$39.6 million,
representing a significant decrease of approximately 81.1% as
compared to that of last year. The decrease in revenue was mainly
attributable to the reallocation of marketing budgets to
performance-based advertising from traditional ways by
advertisers, affected by the macroeconomic environment and
fierce competition of internet advertising industry, and the service
provided by the Group couldn’t meet the higher requirements for
advertising effectiveness. The Group is trying to adjust its
operation mode to recapture the lost customers.

Revenue generated from the Digital assets business segment was
approximately HK$6.8 million, including HK$5.1 million from
cryptocurrency mining service and HK$1.7 million from
cryptocurrency hosting service. This business segment is being
conducted in an moderate manner and the management are
paying close attention to the movement and volatility of the prices
of digital currencies.

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Cost of sales mainly represents costs incurred for provision of
internet advertising agency services and digital assets business
during the year.

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$45.6
million for the year ended 30 June 2022. Cost of sales decreased
by approximately 76.4% as compared with the cost of sales for
the year ended 30 June 2021.

Gross profit margin of approximately 1.9% for the year ended 30
June 2022 decreased by 5.6% comparing to the gross profit
margin of approximately 7.5% for the year ended 30 June 2021,
mainly due to the decreased advertisement budgets from the
clients of internet advertisement agency business, which resulted
in lowering the fees by the Company while providing quality
services, as well as the increase in the operating costs of digital
assets business at the initial stage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income, Gains and Losses, net

Other income, gains and losses, net, mainly represents sundry
income or (losses) incidental to our business, principally including
interest income, gain on disposal of available-for-sale asset, loss
on disposal of certain fixed assets and impairment loss recognised
on trade and other receivables.

Other income, gains and losses, net, amounted to net losses of
approximately HK$69.8 million for the year ended 30 June 2022
compared to net losses of approximately HK$19.8 million for the
year ended 30 June 2021. The significant increase of losses is
mainly from impairment loss recognised on prepayments for
service costs mainly incurred for the Group’s internet advertising
agency business. Due to the uncertainty of financial position of
certain suppliers, the management considered it appropriate to
recognise impairment losses amounted to HK$69.2 million.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses comprise mainly payroll
expenses. The selling and distribution expenses for the year ended
30 June 2022 and 2021 were approximately HK$0.4 million and
HK$0.6 million respectively. The decline in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly due to the tight cost control exercised for
internet advertising agency business and decrease in the number
of practising staff of internet advertising agency business.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses comprised mainly payroll expenses, rent,
depreciation, operating expenses and other office administrative
expenses. Administrative expenses were approximately HK$29.7
million for the year ended 30 June 2022, while amounted to
approximately HK$27.1 million for the year ended 30 June 2021,
representing an increase of approximately 9.6%.

The higher administrative expenses for the year ended 30 June
2022 were recorded mainly due to increase in depreciation of
equipment and service fees of third-party organizations.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased to HK$0.3 million in FY2022 from HK$1.1
million in FY2021, primarily due to decrease in interest on bank
and other borrowings and interest on lease liabilities.

Income tax expense

Income tax represents Hong Kong profits tax at 16.5% for the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and PRC Enterprise Income
Tax at 25% for the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC. Certain
subsidiaries of the Company, which are incorporated in the
Horgos Economic Development Zone and engaged in industries
particularly encouraged by the local government, are entitled to a
preferential tax treatment of five years exemption from enterprise
income tax.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a loss for the year of approximately HK$99.5
million and HK$44.1 million for the year ended 30 June 2022 and
2021 respectively.

Financial Position, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial management
policy. In order to achieve better cost control and minimise the
costs of funds, the Group's treasury activities are centralised and
cash is generally deposited with banks in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.

The Group has maintained its funds at a sound and healthy
financial resource level during the year under review. As at 30
June 2022, included in net current assets were cash and bank
balances (including pledged bank deposits) totalling approximately
HK$19.9 million (30 June 2021: HK$1.4 million), the increase in
which was mainly attributable to the extension of payment terms
on the settlement with suppliers.

Property, plant and equipment

The group has recorded property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$4.7million for the year ended 30 June 2022,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$13.7 million, as
compared with about HK$18.4 million for the year ended 30 June
2021.The decrease of property, plant and equipment by HK$13.7
is mainly due to the depreciation charge of HK$6.8 million for the
year ,and disposal and impairment of HK$9.4 million of
machineries and equipment in connection with the Group's digital
assets business during the year. Because of the restrictions of
cryptocurrency mining operations imposed by the PRC local
government, the management dispose the machineries and
equipment to slow down the speed of digital assets business
expansion.

Trade receivables

The group’s trade receivables is zero at 30 June 2022, (HK$28.9
million at 30 June 2021). The decrease in trade receivables by
HK$28.9 million or 100% for the year is mainly due to the full
impairment for the account receivables for internet advertising
services during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Assets classified as held-for-sale/liabilities associated
with assets classified as held-for-sale

During the year ended 30 June 2021, to meet the Group’s
business transformation, certain intangible assets of the Group
with the carrying amount of approximately HK$20.5 million, the
Group's interest in an associate, Yidao Network, with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$32.4 million and the Group's
interest in an associate, Baitui Network, with the carrying amount
of HK$Nil was reclassified to assets classified as held-for-sale. The
deposits received on disposal of Yidao Network and Baitui
Network, respectively amounted to approximately HK$14.8 million
and HK$7.58 million, were included in liabilities associated with
the assets classified as held-for-sale. During the current year,
completion of the disposal of these intangible assets and interests
in associates took place in September 2021.

The Group’s outstanding borrowings as at 30 June 2022
amounting to HK$23.1 million (30 June 2021: HK$10.2 million)
were principally denominated in HKD and carried at fixed interest
rates.

The Group monitored capital using gearing ratio, which is total
debt of the Group divided by total equity of the Group.

Total debt to equity ratio of the Group expressed as a percentage
of borrowings over the total equity was approximately 43.8% as
at 30 June 2022 (30 June 2021: 7.7%).

As at 30 June 2022, there was no seasonality as to the Group’s
borrowing requirements and no committed borrowing facilities.

Financial Management Policies

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market
risks such as currency risk and interest rate risk. The Group's risk
management policy aims to minimise the adverse effects of these
risks on its financial performance.

Cash is generally deposited with banks in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, which is denominated mostly in United States
dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Hong Kong dollars are
pegged to United States dollars under the current policy of the
Government of Hong Kong.

As the Group's trading transactions, monetary assets and liabilities
in Mainland China are denominated mainly in Renminbi, and
trading transactions, monetary assets and liabilities in Hong Kong
and overseas are denominated mainly in Hong Kong dollars (being
the Group's operating and reporting currencies) and United States
dollars (to which Hong Kong dollars were pegged), the impact of
foreign exchange exposure to the Group was minimal and the
changes in foreign exchange rates did not have a significant
adverse effect on normal operations during the reporting periods.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

With the current interest rates staying at relatively low levels, the
Group has not entered into any interest rate hedging contracts or
any other interest rate related derivative financial instrument.
However, the Group continues to monitor its related interest rate
exposure closely.

Charge Over Assets of the Group

As at 30 June 2022, there is no pledged bank deposits of the
Group to support the Group's banking facilities (30 June 2021:
Nil).

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2022, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitment (30 June 2021: capital commitment of the Group
relating to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
amounting to HK$13.9 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liability (30 June 2021: Nil).

Risk management and uncertainties

The Board believes that risk management is essential to the
Group's efficient and effective operation. The Group's
management assists the Board in periodic evaluation of principal
risks exposed to the Group and estimation made for the
uncertainties; and participates in formulating appropriate risk
management and internal control measures for the purpose of on-
going monitoring of such risks and assessing the appropriateness
of such estimations.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal in FY2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, there is no significant event that
took place subsequent to 30 June 2022.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had a workforce of 28 employees
(2021: 48). Total staff costs for FY2022 were approximately
HK$6.3 million, as compared to total staff costs of HK$7.3 million
in FY2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated by the Remuneration Committee (as defined below)
with reference to the duties, responsibilities, experience and
competence of individual employees. The same policy also applies
to the Directors. In addition to salaries and discretionary bonuses
relating to the performance of the Group, employee benefits
included pension scheme contributions. The emoluments of the
Directors are reviewed annually by the remuneration committee of
the Company (“Remuneration Committee”).

As incentives and rewards for their contributions to the Group,
the employees of the Group and all the Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) may also be granted share
options by the Company from time to time pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 28 January 2015.

The Group provides various training to its employees to enhance
their technical skills and knowledge relevant to the employees’
responsibilities. The Group also provides its employees with quality
control standards and work safety standards training to enhance
their safety awareness.

The employees in Hong Kong are enrolled in the Mandatory
Provident Fund under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Monthly contributions are made by the
Group which are 5% of the monthly income of the employees as
stipulated under the relevant requirements (if applicable), with the
maximum contributions of HK$1,500 monthly.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the employees in PRC shall be enrolled in the respective
government retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby
the Group is required to contribute to the Schemes to fund the
retirement benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions made
to the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages of the
applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements in
the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under the Schemes.

During the year under review, the Group did not experience any
strikes, work stoppages or significant labour disputes which
affected its operations in the past and it did not experience any
significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff.
The Directors consider that the Group has maintained good
working relationship with its employees.
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EXECUTIVE DIR CTO&S

'4,

Zhu Yongjun
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. Zhu Yongjun (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 42, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 24 February 2017, the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer (“CEO") of
the Company on 17 March 2017. He stepped down as the CEO
on 5 September 2017. Mr. Zhu has been appointed as the CEO of
the Company with effect from 11 November 2020. Mr. Zhu also
serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Zhu is experienced in investment management. Mr. Zhu has
been the founder, chairman and chief executive officer of
Shanghai Financial Investment Information Services Company
Limited* ( E/8Z £ REERBABR A F]) since 2014 and was
the founder of Taizhou Sifang Network Company Limited* (Z=/!
P95 #84% AR /AF)) in 2005. He was the general manager of the
network department of China Telecommunications Taizhou
Industrial Corporation* (4 B & {z Z= M & 2% 2 7)) from 2004 to
2005. Mr. Zhu holds a bachelor’s degree in economic information
management from Jiangnan University.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhu is beneficially
interested in 38,398,786 shares of the Company.

14 MILLION STARS HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2022

HITES
KREE

EE THBERARUITESE

RBERE(RELE]D 2% R_T—LF
“TAZtMBREZEREAR 7%%175%&#\\
TEHF-ATLREREREALRFESFS
TERITHAE ([1THRAER]) - BN _F—+t
FAARBRETHRAE - REELBZER/R
REWITHAE B _FT_FTF+—H+—H
FRAR - RELTFNRAREETHBRREE
S

REENREECEBERLELR -8 -F
F - REERLESRERE uﬂlﬁi‘%ﬁﬁﬁ
BlZBIPA - TERTHREE YR _-_ZTTH
FREMNOTREERIBZEMA - B -F
ZMEE_TTHF RRATEEERMNEE
RAZPE AL - REEFATHEABRK
BIEEERELEMN -

RAFHBHY AREALEEBESEBAR
38,398,786 A i {7 2 ##af

el



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Gan Xiaohua
Executive Director

Mr. Gan Xiaohua (“Mr. Gan"), aged 50, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 25 July 2022. He currently
serves as the chairman of Zhejiang Surong Technology Co., Ltd.
(47 )L iR Bt Bt £ B R 2 7). He graduated from the Zhejiang
University in July 1994 with a bachelor degree in computer
application. From September 1994 to October 1999, Mr. Gan
worked at Zhongcheng Xingda Electronics Co., Ltd. (FRI2HHESE
F A& BR A 7)) of the logistics center of Zhejiang University; from
July 2000 to November 2008, he served as the general manager
of Shanghai Zeou Information Technology Co., Ltd. (/82812
BRIEBRAT); from December 2008 to June 2014, he served
as the chairman and general manager of Hangzhou Rongbang
Investment Management Company Limited (T1/H @R EEEH
B 2 &]); from July 2014 to June 2016, he served as the general
manager of Hangzhou Guangda Equity Investment Fund
Management Company Limited (Fi/N % KIRiEREE S EEAR
2~ al); and from July 2016 to present, he served as the chairman
of Zhejiang Surong Technology Co., Ltd. (JTiEgE R AR A 7).

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Gan is beneficially interest
in 8,005,000 shares of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Tian Yuan
Executive Director

Ms. Tian Yuan (“Ms. Tian”), aged 48, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 28 July 2017. Ms. Tian also
serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Tian obtained her bachelor’s degree in economics from the
University of California, Los Angeles and her master of science in
financial engineering degree from the University of Michigan Ann
Arbor.

Ms. Tian previously worked for US I.B. Fund Management Limited,
Societe Generale Securities Hong Kong, Ltd, the Investment
Management Department of Legend Holdings Ltd and other
financial enterprises. She is experienced in technical analysis of
foreign exchange, foreign exchange trading, derivatives
development, trading and sales, financial product investment, the
establishment and operation of investment funds, private equity,
capital market investment, financing etc.

Ms. Tian is now the general manager of Shanghai Angell Asset
Management Company Limited, the deputy general manager of
Jilin Province Investment Group Company Limited* (& #& & &
£ B BR2AF]) and the director and deputy general manager of
Haitong Jihe Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (/&
BERBREREESEIEBRAF). She is also the member of
the Investment Committee of Jilin Province Modern Agriculture
and New Industrial Investment Fund Limited Company* (& # &
BREEMFNTEEEIKEERE S ER A A and Jilin Province
National New Energy Venture Investment Fund (Limited
Partnership)* (ZMEBIRIEREIERERES AR X (BRE
#)3IRZE &), and the director of the Investment Committee of Jilin

Province Ageing Service Industry Fund (Limited Partnership)* (&

MEBERBEXESABLEE(BRER)).

Ms. Tian is a director of Shanghai Hutong Investments Centre
(Limited Partnership)* (_E/88MRIEE RO (BRER)) which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Chen Ce
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Ce (“Mr. Chen”), aged 37, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 1 January
2018. He is now serving as the chairman of audit committee and
corporate governance committee, and a member of remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Chen has been a senior investment manager of Haitong
Capital Investment Co., Ltd. since August 2011 and is mainly
responsible for pre-investment research, post-investment
management and coordination between relevant parties of
investment projects. Before joining Haitong Capital Investment
Co., Ltd., Mr. Chen worked as an analyst of the Investment Center
of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange from July 2010 to
May 2011 and was mainly responsible for calculation and
statistical work relating to daily foreign exchange positions as well
as monthly performance analysis and attribution. Prior to this, Mr.
Chen successively worked for Shanghai Lixin Ruisi Information
Management Co., Ltd. and Tebon Securities Co., Ltd. in various
positions during the period from June 2008 to December 2009.

Mr. Chen obtained a master’'s degree in management from the
School of Management of Fudan University in June 2010 and a
bachelor’'s degree in management from the School of
Management of Xiamen University in June 2007. Mr. Chen is also
a certified public accountant, a non-practising member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a CFA
charterholder. Mr. Chen is a qualified securities practitioner and
funds practitioner.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Zhu Minli
Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhu Minli (“Ms. Zhu"), aged 40, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 11 December
2020. She is now serving as a member of audit committee and
corporate governance committee and the chairlady of
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company.

Ms. Zhu currently serves as an assistant to the executive president
of Jilin Changbaishan Equity Investment Management Co., Ltd.*
(FMERBILREREEEBR A A]. Previously, Ms. Zhu has
served as the director of risk control of Beijing Jixin Huijin Fund
Management Company Limited* (It REEESESEREERA
Al), a risk control manager of Haitong Jihe Private Equity
Investment Fund Management Company Limited* (/838 & R A% 4E
KEESLEREBREMEAA), and a department manager of
Ruihua China CPAs.

Ms. Zhu has been engaged in investment management for many
years, mainly responsible for the risk management and control of
investment projects, the establishment and continuous
improvement of corporate internal control systems, and the
supervision of effective implementation of internal control
mechanisms. Ms. Zhu also has many years of experience in
financial auditing. During her tenure, she was responsible for the
auditing of a number of well-known companies, and possessed
comprehensive and solid accounting knowledge and financial
analysis capability.

Ms. Zhu is a certified public accountant of China and a qualified
fund practitioner. Ms. Zhu holds a bachelor’s degree in
management from Changchun University (K& AZ), majoring in
financial management.

* for identification only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Jiang Ying
Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Jiang Ying (“Ms. Jiang”), aged 35, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 11 December 2020. She is now serving as a member of audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee and
corporate governance committee of the Company.

Ms. Jiang has extensive experience in corporate governance. She
currently works at a large group company, responsible for
company secretary work of subsidiaries of the group. Ms. Jiang
worked for several Hong Kong companies listed on Main Board,
responsible for internal control and listing compliance. Ms. Jiang
held management positions at several companies in the past,
including CEO secretary of CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1141) (formerly known as Skyway Securities Group Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;
business developer and IT manager of Carlton Mansfield Limited.

Ms. Jiang holds professional qualifications of “Chartered
Secretary” and “Chartered Governance Professional”, and is a
member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. Ms.
Jiang holds a bachelor’s degree in advertising from
Communication University of China, a master’s degree in new
media from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a master’s
degree in professional accounting and corporate governance from
City University of Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEWE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for FY2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
FY2022 (2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during FY2022 and a
discussion on the Group's future business development, possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided
in the Management Discussion and Analysis.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
FY2022 using key financial performance indicators is provided in
the Financial Review.

Discussion on the Group's environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Group is provided in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for the year ended 30 June 2022 is
set out on page 60 to page 94.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 33(b) to the
consolidated financial statements and the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 109 respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, as at 30 June
2022, the contributed surplus and share premium accounts are
distributable to the Shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which any dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Movements in the distributable reserves of the Company during
the year ended 30 June 2022 are set out in note 33(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 30 June 2022 are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 30 June 2022, sales to the Group's five
largest customers accounted for 100% of the Group's total sales
for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 84.1%.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 100% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year and purchases from the Group’s largest
supplier included therein amounted to 95.4%.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
during the year under review are disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed below, these
related party transactions either (i) do not constitute connected or
continuing connected transactions or (ii) fall under the definition
of a connected or continuing connected transaction, but are
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
ended 30 June 2022 (2021: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yongjun
Mr. GAN Xiaohua (appointed on 25 July 2022)
Ms. TIAN Yuan

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Ce
Ms. ZHU Minli
Ms. JIANG Ying

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 30 June 2022, none of the Directors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which any subsidiary of the
Company or the ultimate holding company of the Company or
any subsidiary of such ultimate holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company or any entities connected
with a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or
at any time during that financial year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the FY2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on
28 January 2015 and the subscription agreements entered into
with Jia Heng Tai Feng Co., Limited and Mr. Gan Xiachua on 28
April 2021, the supplemental agreements with Jia Heng Tai Feng
Co., Limited and Mr. Gan Xiaohua on 1 June 2021 and the second
supplemental agreement with Mr. Gan Xiaohua on 1 July 2021,
no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company
during the financial year or subsisted at the end of the financial
year.

ISSUE OF NEW SHARES
Subscription agreements dated 28 April 2021

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28 April
2021 and 6 May 2021 (collectively, the “Announcements”), the
Company entered into the subscription agreements dated 28 April
2021 in relation to the subscription of an aggregate of 84,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.25 per share by Jia Heng Tai Feng Co.,
Limited (the “Subscriber A”) and Mr. Gan Xiaohua (the
“Subscriber B”) , which is to be the best knowledge information
and belief of the Directors having made all reasonable enquiries,
each of the subscribers and its ultimate beneficial owner(s) were
independent third parties of the Company and its connected
persons (as defined under Listing Rules) as at the date of the
Announcements and up to 24 July 2022.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 1 June
2021, each of the Subscriber A and Subscriber B entered into
supplemental agreements dated 1 June 2021 with the Company
pursuant to which Subscriber A and Subscriber B and the
Company agreed that the completion should take place on or
before 30 June 2021.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEWE

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28 July
2021, the Company and the Subscriber B entered into a second
supplemental agreement dated 1 July 2021 pursuant to which
both parties agreed to (i) reduce the number of subscription
shares from 32,000,000 shares to 16,000,000 shares; and (i)
extend the long stop date to 31 July 2021.

The subscriptions by Subscriber A and Subscriber B were
completed on 28 July 2021. The total subscription price of
HK$13,000,000 was paid by the Subscriber A in cash and
HK$4,000,000 by the Subscriber B in cash at the completion of
the subscriptions. The aggregate nominal value of the subscription
shares is HK$680,000.

The fund raised by the subscriptions on the issue of shares was
HK$17,000,000 and the premium on the issue of shares
amounted to approximately HK$16,320,000 and credited to the
Company share premium account. The subscription was
completed on 28 July 2021 and the Company issued and allotted
68,000,000 shares on 28 July 2021.

The Directors consider that the subscriptions represents an
opportunity to raise additional funding for the Group with general
working capital to meet any future business including but not
limited to the repayment of borrowings. The subscriptions will also
strengthen the capital base and financial position for the Group’s
future business developments and broaden the shareholder base
and capital base of the Company.

The Directors consider that the terms of the Subscription
Agreements (including the subscription price) and the transactions
contemplated thereunder are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Use of Proceeds

Each of the gross proceeds and net proceeds from the issue of the
shares is estimated to be HK$17,000,000 and approximately
HK$16,955,000 respectively. The Company intends to use the net
proceeds for general working capital of the Group and for the
future development of the Group’s business. The net price of each
share is approximately HK$0.25.

The table below gives out the details of the use of proceeds:

Allocation of
Net Proceeds

Fi

Issue of 68,000,000 shares RZE--f£+tA=+N\H
on 28 July 2021 217 68,000,000 B R 17
Future business development, AREBRE  BIEETE
including but not limited to data REER L REME
centre and other potential HIRICER
business development

Repayment of borrowing BRER

General working capital of the rEBY —REEES
Group

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of his/her duty or supposed duty in his/her office.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to cover
the Directors and officers of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 January 2015, the Company adopted the Share Option
Scheme and the major terms of the Share Option Scheme were
summarized as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 28
January 2015 by shareholder’s written resolution.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives
and rewards for their contribution to the Group. It became
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the date
on which the Share Option Scheme was adopted.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may at
its absolute discretion grant options to the following persons
(the “Eligible Participants”):

(@) any employees (including any executive Directors) of
the Group or any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity"”);

(b) any non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(f)  any shareholder of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group,

and, for the purposes of this Share Option Scheme, the offer

may be made to any company wholly-owned by one or more
Eligible Participants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(c)

(d)

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme

The total number of shares may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is 40,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 8.20% of the total issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. The maximum
number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue, unless approved by the shareholders
of the Company in the manner as stipulated in the Share
Option Scheme.

For any grant of options to a substantial shareholder of the
Company or an independent non-executive Director or any
of their respective close associates, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
must not:

(a) exceed 0.1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue; and

(b) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the offer date of each offer, in excess of
HK$5 million;

unless such grant of options approved by the shareholders
of the Company in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(e)

(f

(9)

28

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date on which the offer
for the grant of options is made but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. No
minimum period for which the option must be held before it
can be exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option
granted under the Share Option Scheme is such price as
determined by the Board of the Company at the time of the
grant of the options, but in any case the subscription price
shall not be lower than the higher of:

J the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date on which the options are
offered, which must be a business day;

J the price being the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the options;
and

J the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of offer.

Payment on acceptance of option
A non-refundable sum of HK$1.00 is required to be paid by
each grantee upon acceptance of the granted option. An

option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from
the date of offer for the grant of option.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(h) Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years from its adoption date (i.e. 28 January 2015). The
Share Option Scheme will terminate or expire (as the case
may be) on the earlier (i) the approval of the shareholders in
a general meeting, and (ii) at the close of business on the
day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of the
adoption date (Scheme Period).

No share option has been granted since the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme and there are no outstanding share options at the
end of the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based on
their merit, qualifications and competence. The Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive to Directors and
eligible employees, details of the Share Option Scheme is set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and approved
by the Remuneration Committee and the Board respectively,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group during FY2022 are set out in note
12 and note 11 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the Laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing Shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this Annual Report, there was sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company'’s issued shares as required under
the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO"))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Interests in Shares of the Company

Name of Director

Capacity

Mr. Zhu Yongjun Beneficial Owner

KBEELE EmEA A

Mr. Gan Xiaohua Benefi\cial owner

HEgsELE EmEA A
Notes:

As at 30 June 2022, the Company had 488,000,000 Shares in issue.

Abbreviation: “L" stands for long position.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS

TERRREMATHEZRAE

As at 30 June 2022, so far as is known to the Directors of the W-_Z—-—F<xA=+H AL TZ2EHFR
Company, persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of &1 BRARRIEEZTHFBITHAEN © TFA
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares  +RARA TR SAHBRD T HEEREEZE S &
or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be HIE{&HIEXVEE 2 R 3D 2 IEXARARD
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the FIREZFAEBEXELNAATEEZAS L
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which & {&HIZE 33615 BTFEZ E MR #ER
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company A& :

under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Approximate

Percentage of
Issued Share
Capital of
the Company
Interests in as at
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares 30 June 2022 Note
EARDFAR
—E-C
AA=THZ
ERITRAHN
R 2 R BRERL
Jiang Peijie Beneficial Owner 29,150,000 (L) 5.97%
B2 ExBEBA
7Road Holding Limited Beneficial owner 54,000,000 (L) 11.07%
FLRBERBERAF ExBEBA
United Conquer Limited ("UCL") Interest of controlled corporation 22,497,169 (1) 4.61%
United Conquer Limited ([UCL]) XEEERER
Shanghai Hutong Investments Centre Beneficial owner 50,000,000 (L) 10.25%
(Limited Partnership)* (“SHIC") EREEA
LBRRRERL(BREH) Interest of controlled corporation 22,497,169 (L) 461% 2
(I LBHR]) XEEEER
BOC-HFT-BOC-Overseas Investment manager 50,000,000 (L) 10.25% 3
No.1 QDII Segregated Account
("BOC Account”)
BERE — FERTEMKQDI REKE
BEEEFEI(HREETE])
Shanghai Angell Asset Management Interest of controlled corporation 72,497,169 (L) 14.86% 4
Company Limited*
("Shanghai Angell”)
LBREREERBRAA RErE#ER
([EBRE]
Jilin Province Investment Group* Interest of controlled corporation 72,497,169 (L) 14.86% 5
ENERESE REEEER
Yao Ligang Interest of controlled corporation 72,497,169 (1) 1486% 6
2w XEEEER
3 For identification purpose only * BH#H5

R CEFERE - BEERERAA]
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EERE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS (continued)

Name of Shareholders Capacity

Wang Fei Beneficial owner

EafEA

FERRREMATHER AR (8)

Approximate
Percentage of
Issued Share

Capital of

the Company

Interests in as at

Shares 30 June 2022 Note
NG
—E-C

AA=tHZ

BRITRAH

R G 2 R BABA

40,000,000 (L) 8.20%

50,000,000 (L) 10.25%

52,000,000 (L) 10.66%
52,000,000 (L) 10.66% 7

52,000,000 (L) 10.66%

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited Security interest
REERGRIERERAF REE
Jia Heng Tai Feng Co., Limited Beneficial owner
REREARAF BREAA
Wu Zhongyi Interest of controlled corporation
B — R rE R
Li Wei Wei* Security interest
PRI * REER

Notes:

1.

As at 30 June 2022, the Company had 488,000,000 Shares in issue.

SHIC’s deemed shareholdings stated above were held by virtue of its 100%
shareholding interests in UCL.

BOC Account’s deemed shareholdings stated above were held as a trustee of
a discretionary trust of which SHIC was the founder.

Shanghai Angell’'s deemed shareholdings stated above were held by virtue of
its 1% capital commitment in SHIC's contribution through general
partnership.

Jilin Province Investment Group'’s deemed shareholdings stated above were
held by virtue of its 37.03% capital commitment in SHIC's contribution
through limited partnership.

Yao Ligang’s deemed shareholdings stated above were held by virtue of its
43.20% capital commitment in SHIC's contribution through limited

partnership.

Mr. Wu Zhongyi provided an interest in the Shares as security to a person
other than a qualified lender on 13 May 2022.

Mr. Li Wei Wei acquired a security interest in the Shares on 13 May 2022.

Abbreviation: “L" stands for long position
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, at no time
during the year was the Company, any of its holdings companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or the chief executives of the Company or
any of their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For FY2022, the Directors are not aware of any business or interest
of the Directors, the controlling Shareholders and their respective
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that compete
or may compete with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interests which any such person has or may have with
the Group.

AUDITORS

Following the resignation of RSM Hong Kong (“RSM") as auditors
of the Company on 6 July 2020, Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited
("Yongtuo”) was appointed as auditors of the Company by the
Directors on 7 July 2020 to fill in the vacancy following the
resignation of RSM.

The Board confirmed that there was no disagreement between
RSM and the Company. Yongtuo was re-appointed as auditor of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company on
11 December 2020.

Yongtuo has resigned as auditor of the Company with effect from
1 November 2021. The Board confirmed that there was no
disagreement between Yongtuo and the Company. On 8
December 2021, the Board resolved to appoint CCTH CPA Limited
as the new auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of Yongtuo.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditors
of the Company during the past three years.

EEWME

EEREROIEZNVER

B EX TRERRERT 8 — R [EENEETR
ABRED - AR RIESF S AR |
BRMAREEI > NRR] - EREERAR
B B8 2~ RISk Rl Z Y B 2 R S AR AT (R L
RIEARHFAEARAREEHNERITHRAER
PR SR B BB 18 A TR FF L&
BB AR E S H R B kiG55 &

E_ o
EERERBRRREFRE 2

RZZFZ_MF EFUENBTEAESE 2
BERERESEBZBEA(ERRGEM LT
MR JE B BN ER B SR A5 A BT 3R] BERE X
B EBH RN EF A T#ELRD - AAE
Ef AR A el Al RE SR AR R (B 77 1 (T (] Ho At
S &R -

3 L]

EHERRSHMEBM(ERX DR _F=
TELANBRHEARAZBANEL - XIBEE
SEMEEMERAR(KADER-_Z-F
FLALBREEZERANRFZREE - A
HAERXBH TR -

BEECHRAERZEARRTEZT OB ° K
R -2 -_ZFF+ A+ —HRARRBKEREEA
FRE FENERTAERRBIZEAM -
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WEEEHE RZT_—F+-ANA &
GRBZEREREEHAMBERARRBAR
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The consolu&d financial statements for FY2022 have been =T = —HF 7R AMBHRERCHPERES
audited by CCTH CPA Limited. STRIERAREZ

On behalf of the Board REEFE

Zhu Yongjun KEBE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FERITHAEH

Hong Kong B

19 January 2023 —E-=%—A+AhH
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group's corporate governance framework is based on two
main beliefs:

o the Group recognises to maintain good corporate
governance practices and procedures; and

o the Group recognises the need to adopt practices that
improve itself continuously for a quality management.

The Company has adopted the code provisions on Corporate
Governance Code in force during the year ended 30 June 2022 as
set out in Appendix 15 (version up to 31 December 2021) to the
GEM Listing Rules.

The requirements under the new Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the “New CG
Code") which came into effect on 1 January 2022 shall apply to
the Company’s corporate governance report for the financial year
commencing on 1 January 2022 (i.e. year ending 30 June 2023).

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group was in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, except the deviations
disclosed below:

/é*[?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬂ?kig = II.:\ :

AEEFNIRERRINEEER
BF R

B

s AEERIIFERMTEHNZEASEH
ERNER  UREREEEAEER -

ANRAEERMHGME TR A&+ R
(BEZZ-—F+A=1+—BZRA) &
REBEE-Z-_—_FRXA=ZTHILEFERERZ
EEIRSFRIMSFRIME o

R-ZT-—F— A —B4E®RZ GEM EWRAIKM
BT RS M EERTR(HEEERT
AINETZREBERRARGTN T

—H BB BREE(EE_Z==

/\)EJ ‘|’E|.|J:$F)E’] %E/Dﬁ&i°

RBE_T__FX A=1tALFE A5H
—HETGEM LR RSB+ AAE o EE
JAsTR - MET XBER 2 IRBEIE LRSI
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERME

Considered Reason
Code Provision Deviation for Deviation

<P Rl {5k 3L 1w Bk 1B i fmBkfH5R 2 M2 R E

A.1.1 (which  The board should meet regularly and  Due to the delay in the  During the year, certain ad hoc

was board meetings should be held at publication of the Board Meeting were held by the
rearranged to least four times a year at annual report for the Company. Some Company’s matters
code provision approximately quarterly intervals. year ended 30 June was dealt by Board by way of Board
of C. 5.1 of 2021 since 27 Resolutions instead of physical Board
the New CG EFZERTHRITEHE  MEFEE  September 2021, the  Meeting.
Code) EEFFROBITIOR  HFF— Board has not held four

IR o board meetings during  FRA - NARIRITETREESS
A1 the year. EE o ETGUEFERERARN
(B3R PREGEFSEHE  REFHAN
FER<TAlZ BE-Z-_—FANA ANRIEH °
< RIMER S5 “tHHE ARER
C.5.11%) HEBEE—_T - —FX

A=Z+HILEENEF
W HEBENFAL
EROTOAEEEE
E

A2.1 The roles of chairman and chief Mr. Zhu, the Chairman  The Board believes that the present
(which was  executive officer should be separated  and Executive Director, arrangement enables the Company
rearranged to and should not be performed by the  has been appointed as  to make and implement decisions

code provision same individual. the CEO of the promptly, and thus achieve the

C.2.1 of the Company with effect Company’s objectives efficiently and

New CG FREERTHBEBER 2 BCEBHMES ©  from 11 November effectively in response to the

Code) TR — ALTHEE - 2020. changing environment. The Board
also believes that the Company

A2.1 FERAITESKRILE  already has a strong corporate

(B RF T EZREAARARITHA governance structure in place to

ZERTAIZ #H BZZT-ZFF+— ensure effective oversight of

SFRMRXE A+—HBRBER- management.

C2.11%)

E=2RERALHSARRRE

e MITRE - A& &RE
MWERARNABIR - AEHZE
2R - BRI EARRICH
BRAZBEERGERE  AIERA

MEBERE -

A2.7 The chairman should at least annually  Due to the outbreak of =~ The chairman communicated with
(which was  hold meetings with the independent ~ Covid-19, the chairman independent non-executive Director
rearranged to non-executive directors without the did not hold physical individually instead of holding
code provision presence of other directors. meeting with the physical meeting with them.
C.2.7 of the independent non-
New CG FEERKIDEFHEBTIFNTEER  executive Directors FREREIFNTEETSEHER -
Code) T—RRBEEMEELEFNEE - without the presence Wi EERITIRIB S -

of other directors.
A.2.7
(B3| R A EEE Covid-19 * *
Epiaas:llpd J&E I B B2 S5 T FEFNITE
ST RIMESC R ERITREHMESRS
C.2.71%) FERSEH -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Code Provision

<P R R 3L

Deviation

mBE1E I

TEERHRE

Considered Reason
for Deviation

C.1.2

(which was
rearranged to
code provision
D.1.2 of the

=AY
X

C.2.1 (which
was
rearranged
to code
provision
D.2.1 of the
New CG
Code)

C.2.1
(EA AT
¥EATRIZ
SFAMEXE
D.2.11&)

Management should provide all
members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the
Company'’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable
the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties
under Rule 5.01 and Chapter 17 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

EEEREGEANEESSEKABIRME
BHER  HAIBEBRARTHRKRIR
KRR RB AT RS NIBRAET
f RARUNEREAEEENEES
JE1TGEM LR AIZE 5.01 K% E
+EEMRENEE -

The Board should oversee the issuer’s
risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, ensure
that a review of the effectiveness of
the issuer’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control
systems has been conducted at least
annually and report to shareholders
that it has done so in its Corporate
Governance Report. The review should
cover all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance
controls.

ESeRNERERITANARERE
RABEZRS  BERZLEBFRE
—RETAREWMBARMERER
RARPEZE RGN AR - WHEED
FERmEPERRERD TKE RS
Ay o e ORE T A ERES
BREMK  EENARERE -

The management could
not provide the
Directors with updated
financial information of
the Company each
month due to the
lockdown of certain
cities in China during
the outbreak of
Covid-19.

AR 2 Covid—19 HA
RS T E
EEEELISANES
RIEARD BB TS

During the period, the
Company failed to have
effective risk
management and
internal control systems
within the Group, i.e.
deficiencies in internal
control over compliance
matters.

REIR - RARBIREER
RE B RERILA WA,
RETE N N RRES 1 &
7 ABEAREEN
N EBES IR TR FE R o

R CEFERE - BEERERAA]

W AmEE 155 E BBz R E

The Board members of the Company
were still informed by the
management of the Company by
email, by WeChat or by phone on
the updated information of the
Company'’s performance and future
business plan from time to time.

ARREFERENHARRER
ETREER  MEXEERSHE
B AR IR R R EH AT EIH
RHTER

The Company had engaged external
consultants to review its certain
existing internal control measures on
the areas agreed by the Board of
Directors and provide suggestions to
improve the internal control systems
and risk management systems of the
Group.

RSM Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited
issued the Internal Control Review
Report and Risk Management Review
Report in July 2022.

The management has taken steps to
set up and improve the risk
management and internal control
systems as recommended by the
external consultant.

ARRRERIBINEREER - U ES
SHENEIREE TRERNE
B MR HNE AR BN ERE
ERRLEREERGHEE

RZTE__F+F - ERXHKAR
AR A F % H AR BRI R E
KRR EEERMRE

EIRE DRI RS RIS I
AR LK S R\ B TR M R R A
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TERERME

Code Provision Deviation

Considered Reason
for Deviation

mBE1E I

<P Rl {5k 3L

ESlN2 The chairman of the Board should
(which was  attend the annual general meeting.
rearranged to The chairman should also invite the
code provision chairmen of the audit, remuneration

The Company did not
hold the annual general
meeting in 2021.

W AmEE 155 E BBz R B

As no annual general meeting was
held in 2021, the Directors are
unable to comment as to whether
the Company has complied with the

of F.2.2 of the and nomination committees to attend. ZARRINZZFT=—4 K said code provision in Appendix 15
New CG RITRRBFKRE - of Listing Rules.
Code) EEGTFRLFERRBFERG - +

ENERFEZ  FTNRREREES HR - —FRBITRFAFAK
E.1.2 EEHE g BREEARANGREEEST
(BEF|RFE it E TR B8R T 89 <7 A RS

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (“Securities Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Each of the Directors gave confirmation that he/she was in
compliance with the Securities Code during the year ended 30
June 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Key features of our Board

Independence

The Company emphasises on independence and objectivity of the
Board and all committees. With the services of three executive
Directors and three INEDs, the Board would have a prudential
oversight on the Company’s businesses and developments.
Commitment

The Company attaches great importance to the level of Directors’
commitment to the Company and the Board. The Directors have

devoted sufficient time to the Company and closely monitored the
Company'’s businesses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN "8 V2N
TEERRE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EEE @)
Attendance at Meetings HESE
The following table shows Directors’ attendance at Board’'s TRELASESNHEZ2-_E-__F~A=1+H
meetings, committees’ meetings and general meetings held in the | Bf Er S E N £2 1 Zé%@’;% TEZES
financial year ended 30 June 2022: EEWUE TN

Meetings Attended/Held
e/ BieE
CORPORATE

REMUNERATION AUDIT  NOMINATION  GOVERNANCE GENERAL

BOARD COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE MEETING
Ezg yMzEe ERZE. REZEEE LXERZEE RRAE
(Total: 0) (Total: 2) Total: 0) (Total: 0) (Total: 0)

(Br:0k)  (@&r:2))  (BE:0k) (R0)) (B :0R)

Executive Directors

BTES

Mr. Zhu Yongjun — Chairman 11 NATER NATER NATER NATER 0/0
REERE—TF

Ms. Tian Yuan n NATER NATER NATEH NARNER 0/0
il

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUkYTES

Mr. Chen Ce 1 0/0 22 0/0 0/0 0/0
RREL

Ms. ZHU Minli 1 0/0 2 0/0 0/0 0/0
RERL

Ms. JIANG Ying 1 0/0 22 0/0 0/0 0/0
IELL

Most of matters relating to Audit Committee, Nomination ZEFZEG®UZEGRFERAANMNKIRS
Committee, Corporate Governance Committee were dealt with E;x REEHEEZLZES  REZLE A&Jt%
the Board Committee by way of committee resolutions instead of EAZBEGHAMLHEE °

physical meetings.
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(continued)

s
RS
Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors and three INEDs as named below. An updated
list of the Directors identifying their roles and functions is posted
on GEM'’s website and the Company’s website from time to time.

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yongjun
Mr. GAN Xiaohua (appointed on 25 July 2022)
Ms. TIAN Yuan

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Ce
Ms. ZHU Minli
Ms. JIANG Ying

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section of this Annual Report.

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
Mr. Chen Ce and Ms. Zhu Minli have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Each Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently. The Board
provides the Group with diversified industry expertise, advised the
management on strategic development and the Board maintains
high standard of compliance with financial and other mandatory
reporting requirements as well as providing adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the
Company as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Diversity

In compliance with the requirement set out in Code Provision
A.5.6 of the CG Code, the Company has put in place a Board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its
approach to achieve diversity on the Board, and a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company.

Measurable Objectives

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
will from time to time discuss and agree on the measurable
objective for achieving diversity of the Board. For the purpose of
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the following
measurable objectives:

1. at least one third of the Directors shall be independent non-
executive Directors;

2.  atleast one Director is female; and

3. atleast one Director shall have obtained accounting or other
professional qualifications.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, all the measurable objectives
have been fulfilled.
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BOARD OF DIREC/TOI{S (continued)

Progress

The Board and the Nomination Committee believe that the
diversity of the Board is sufficient given that there are Directors
from different industries and with different experience, skills and
knowledge. As at 30 June 2022, the analysis of the Board diversity
is set out as follows:

E=g )
R

EEgRREZEERA ERNEERETMH
TERABTRRLR RERDH BHESFS
}E/\%E'ﬂﬁ RZE-—_F A= +E| ﬁ%
EZT LA TERIIAT

Board Diversity Statistics

EEgZusat

100

80
Female
i
50%

Executive
AT
50%

60

40 Independent
Non-
Executlve

20 3E$ﬂﬁ
50%

Gender

151

Category
Ehll

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and CEO should be separated to reinforce
independence accountability and responsibility. Mr. Zhu Yongjun
is the Chairman of the Company who is responsible for enabling
effective operation of the Board. Ms. Wang Fei was the CEO of
the Company who was responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business until her resignation on 5
September 2020.

Mr. Zhu Yongjun has been appointed as the CEO of the Company
with effect from 11 November 2020.

The Board believes that the present arrangement enables the
Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus
achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently and effectively in
response to the changing environment. The Board also believes
that the Company already has a strong corporate governance
structure in place to ensure effective oversight of management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which can be reserved to the Board and delegated
to management or Board committees. The Board delegates day-
to-day operations of the Group to management while reserving
certain key matters, mainly relating to the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies, policies and business
plans; and overseeing and evaluating the performance of the
Group. It is also responsible for promoting the success of the
Group and its businesses by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. Board committees for specific functions are also set up to
ensure efficient Board operations. The composition and functions
of each Board committee and their major roles and functions are
described below. The final decision still rests with the Board unless
otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of the relevant
committees.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the INEDs in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the INEDs remain
independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into an executive
Director’s service agreement with the Company and each of the
INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with specific terms
with the Company with an initial term of three years, subject to
renewal by the Company. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and are eligible for re-election at the general meeting
in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting
but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or
the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at such
meeting.

Every Director, including non-executive Directors and INEDs, was
appointed for a term of three years and would be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three
years at the annual general meeting of the Company. Their
appointments would be reviewed by Nomination Committee
when they were due for re-election.
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TERERME

BOARD MEETINGS

The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings that
includes both executive Directors and INEDs presented in person
or through electronic means of communication regularly at least
four times every year. During regular meetings of the Board, the
Directors discussed and formulated the overall strategies of the
Group, monitored financial performances and reviewed the
financial results, as well as discussed and decided on other
significant matters. The Board will also meet on other occasions
when a board-level decision on a particular matter is required.

Generally, notice of at least fourteen days should be given for a
Company'’s regular Board meeting. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice should be given. The Directors will receive the
agenda and accompanying documents tabled at the meeting
before regular Board meetings and will be given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for discussion.

In order to ensure that Board procedures, applicable rules and
code provisions are followed, all Directors are able to access the
company secretary of the Company for advice. Upon reasonable
request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense.

The company secretary of the Company assists the Chairman of
the Board in preparing the agenda for each meeting. Minutes of
such meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company
or other duly authorised person during the meeting which
included all decisions made during the meetings together with
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). All
minutes are open for inspection by any Director on reasonable
notice. Such minutes are recorded in sufficient detail of the
matters considered and decisions reached. Draft and final versions
of minutes are sent to Directors for comment and records,
respectively.

All Directors gave sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group to ensure a competent Board operation during the year.

Apart from the Board meetings, Board committees met on other
occasions during which matter relating to their respective terms of
reference was discussed. The Board committee members would
receive notice, agenda and documents to be tabled for
consideration in advance of each meeting in accordance with the
CG Code and respective terms of reference.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to cover
the Directors and officers’ risk exposure arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

A comprehensive, formal and tailored induction training will be
given to every newly appointed Director. Directors will be provided
with materials relevant to the Company’s business and director’s
duties and responsibilities. In addition, in order to allow the
Directors to understand the latest development of regulatory and
compliance issues, they are also provided with market news and
regulatory updates. A summary of their records of continuous
development training (“CPD") for the year was as follows:
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Directors
Executive Directors: HITES .
Mr. ZHU Yongjun KEERAE
Ms. TIAN Yuan HExzt
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHHTEE:
Mr. CHEN Ce BRR L
Ms. ZHU Minl| AgBRt
Ms. JJANG Ying TRt
Note 1:
1. Attending in-house training or seminars
2. Reading newspapers, journals and updated legal and regulatory news
Note 2:
A The Company and the industry’s news
B. Laws, rules and regulations, accounting standards

Types of CPD Subject of CPD
FERRIEIEE REREEIEE
1,2 A B

1,2 A B

1,2 A B

1,2 A B

1,2 A B

MiEET

1. 2HERBEINHTE

2. HERE SURSINEEREEER
MisE2

A YNCIDSE kil

B. AR RPINER - FEHAR

TR CEEERE . BEERERAT 45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”), nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) and corporate governance committee
("CG Committee”) for overseeing various particular aspects of the
Group's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of such Board committees are available on GEM's
website and the Company’s website. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resource to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company'’s expense.

All members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the CG Committee are INEDs. The
lists of the chairman and members of each Board committee are
set out below.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 28 January
2015 with written terms of reference. As at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. Chen Ce (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms.
Jiang Ying and Ms. Zhu Minli. Mr. Chen Ce and Ms. Zhu Minli
have appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
accounting matters.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control procedures, reviewing the
Group’s financial information and reviewing the Group’s
relationship with external auditors.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held to
review and consider the annual results for the year ended 30 June
2021, the internal control and risk management system and
further audit issues raised by the external auditors. The Audit
Committee endorsed the accounting treatments adopted by the
Group and, to the best of its ability assured itself that the
disclosures of the financial information in the Company’s
quarterly, interim and annual reports comply with the applicable
accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules.

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and audited
annual results published during the year have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure has been made.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 28
January 2015 with written terms of reference. In line with good
and fair practice, as at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely
Ms. Zhu Minli (Chairlady of the Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Chen Ce and Ms. Jiang Ying.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management; reviewing their remuneration packages, approving
the management’s proposal of remuneration packages by
reference to corporate goals, objectives and market practices.

During the year, no meeting of the Remuneration Committee
were held. The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee according to the Directors’ respective
responsibilities, individual performance and prevailing market
conditions.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 28
January 2015 with written terms of reference. As at the date of
this annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Ms. Zhu Minli (Chairlady of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Chen Ce and Ms. Jiang Ying. The Nomination
Committee has adopted the Board Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Policy.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, the
Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Policy, making
recommendations to the Board on nomination, rotation and re-
appointment of Directors, and assessing the independence of
INEDs.

During the year, no meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted the Nomination Policy on 20
September 2018. Details of the Nomination Policy are set out as
follows:

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

1.

2.

Reputation for integrity;
Accomplishment and experience in different industries;

Commitment to the Board in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
services

These factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The
Nomination Committee has discretion to nominate any person as
it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

1.

48

The secretary of the Nomination Committee or the Company
Secretary shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee,
and invites nominations of candidates from Board member if
any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to
its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put
forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations for the Board’s consideration and
approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election at a
general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Nomination Policy (continued)

Nomination Procedures (continued)

3.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated
persons shall not assume that they have been proposed by
the Board to stand for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated
by the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, and
to invite nominations from shareholders, a circular will be
sent to shareholders. The circular will set out the lodgment
period for shareholders to make the nominations. The
names, brief biographies (including qualifications and
relevant experience), independence, proposed remuneration
and any other information, as required pursuant to the
applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the proposed
candidates will be included in the circular to shareholders.

A shareholder can serve a notice to the Company Secretary
within the lodgement period of its intention to propose a
resolution to elect a certain person as a Director, without the
Board’s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination, other than those candidates set out in the
shareholder circular. The particulars of the candidates so
proposed will be sent to all shareholders for information by
a supplementary circular.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any
time before the general meeting by serving a notice in
writing to the Company Secretary or Chairman.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting.

The Nomination Committee may obtain independent professional
advice, at the Company'’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if
it considers necessary.
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TERERME

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established the CG Committee on 28 January 2015
with written terms of reference. As at the date of this annual
report, the CG Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
Chen Ce (Chairman of the CG Committee), Ms. Zhu Minli and Ms.
Jiang Ying.

The principal duties of the CG Committee include, among other
things: (i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations
to the Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
Group's employees and Directors; and (v) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, no meeting of the CG Committee was held.
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina of CS Legend Business Services Limited,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company
as company secretary. Her primary contact person at the Company
is Ms. Tian Yuan, an executive Director of the Company.

During the year, the company secretary undertook not less than
fifteen hours of relevant professional training required under Rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are aware of the Group’s current liabilities of HK$30
million as at 30 June 2022 and loss for the year of approximately
HK$99.5 million for the year then ended and these conditions
along with other matters indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Further discussion on this
issue has been set out in the note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements in this report.

The management of the Company has given careful consideration
to the Audit Modification and the basis therefor and has had
ongoing discussions with CCTH CPA LIMITED (“CCTH") since
preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
current year ended 30 June 2022. The Qualified Opinion
concerned the possible effect of the opening balance of (i) the
Group's intangible assets and (ii) the interest in Yidao Network (a
former associate of the Group) on the comparability of the figures
for the prior year ended 30 June 2021 in the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. The management agrees with the
professional and independent judgment of CCTH in issuing the
Qualified Opinion.

As at 30 September 2021, the above mentioned intangible assets
and the interest in a former associate of the Company had been
fully disposed with all amounts received. The related balances and
figures of the consolidated financial statements for 2022 had been
determined, which will no longer have any prolonged effect on
the financial performance for the coming year and the Audit
Modification will be removed in the financial year ending 30 June
2023.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the basis of the CCTH
Qualified Opinion and the Company's responses and concurred
with the view of the Company that the audit modification as set
out in the CCTH Qualified Opinion will be removed in respect of
the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023.

The statements of the external auditors of the Group, about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.
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TERERME

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering and reviewing
the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditors, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Group.

For the year, the fees paid/payable to the auditors in respect of
the audit and non-audit services are as follows:

Services
Audit services =B BR %
Non-audit services I ER

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 (which was rearranged to code
provision E.1.5 of the New CG Code), the Company is required to
disclose the remuneration of the member(s) of senior
management of the Group (excluding the Directors of the
Company).

The Company did not have any senior management as at the year
end date.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company established the dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) on 13 February 2019. The Dividend Policy aims to allow its
shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit whilst to retain
adequate reserves for future growth. The Board may declare
special dividends in addition to such dividends as it considers
appropriate.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider
various factors including (i) the Group’s profits earned during the
financial year; (i) the general economic and financial conditions
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business and operation of the Group; (iii) changes in capital
structure of the Group; (iv) acquisitions and dispositions of the
Group; (v) changes in credit arrangements of the Group; (vi) the
cash flow position of the Group; and (vii) the past dividend trends
of the Group.

52 MILLION STARS HOLDINGS LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BB &

BERZESREERNEHIINEZEE 2R
K B2 W NS AR BRAM P 4R 4 2 (1A SRR BUR
% BREAAEHEAKREELERTHEE
Z B BIZHBIRTS

RARFE B RIERBRE 22BN,
T2 BRI

Fee

#H

HK$'000
FET

950
168
BREERE M
RIRST RN EBA SR (BRI A BRERT

A2~ AR EN51K) - RARIARBEAL
BeREEEXNE (TERARBES) ZFHM -

BEFHA  ARRLEEASRERE -

IR BB R

RRBERZZE-NFZAT=RHIERERK
RIBREBEK]) - REBREEERRDZE

NENEA) > FRAKERRETCHE I
ZERBIN EFEAEIRER/EE 255
BB e

REZ N ERBRER  ARRRKERELEA
= BROAEENVBREZMBRIVZ &S (i)
BRI R IEAI A M Eo Al g & AN SR ]
X R EEERTENRNEHIMERE ¢ (i) A
SEEANGEBREY (WAKEZWRERLES
B WARBEEEZHEY  ViAEERSR
ERR Rl ANEEBEREBE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems (“Systems”) and reviews their
effectiveness annually. Such Systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective Systems.

The Company has been developing and adopting various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority for
implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including project management, financial reporting, human
resources etc. The main features are as follows:

Control structure
A. The Board

(i)  ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective
Systems in order to safeguard the Shareholders’
investment and assets of the Company;

(i) define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

(i)  determine the nature and extent of significant risk that
the Company is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives and formulate the Company’s risk
management strategies.

B. Audit Committee

(i)  assist the Board in leading the Management and
overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the Systems of the Company;

(i) review and discuss with the Management annually to
ensure that the Management has performed its duty to
have effective Systems; and

(i) consider major findings on internal control matters and
make recommendations to the Board.
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TERERME

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Control structure (continued)
C. The Management

(i)  design, implement and monitor the Systems properly
and ensure the Systems are executed effectively;

(i) monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in
day-to-day operations;

(iii)  give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters; and

(iv) provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness
of the Systems.

D. Internal Audit Function

(

) carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems.

Control approach

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk evaluation
and risk management measures and also reviewing the effectiveness of
the Systems and resolving material internal control defects.

The Company engaged an independent internal control consultant
to conduct interviews with relevant staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the internal control system, identifying
and evaluating findings of any deficiencies in the design of the
Company’s internal control system, providing recommendations
for improvement and following up on the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the risk management and
internal control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee during the year.

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines are in place to
safeguard the assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting records in compliance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use and/or external
publication.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Control approach (continued)

During the year under review, the Board engaged RSM Consulting
(Hong Kong) Limited (“RSM") to perform internal control review
on major business operations of the Group. RSM evaluated the
internal control system and studied also risks and mitigation
strategies. An internal control review report with the relevant
findings and recommendations was prepared to the Board.
Meanwhile, the risks identified during the review exercise together
with the respective ratings, existing situations and mitigating plans
were all documented in the risk register. RSM had identified
certain deficiencies on the internal control systems. The Board
would take appropriate actions to improve its internal control
systems as recommended by them.

The Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee, annually
assessed and reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
systems and procedures and considered the adequacy of resources
and financial reporting function. The Group currently does not
have an internal audit department, but it has engaged RSM to
provide the Group with internal audit services. The Board will
review and consider to establish such department as and when it
thinks necessary.

Inside Information

To ensure timely, fair, accurate and complete disclosure of inside
information and for compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group has in place the “Continuous Disclosure
and Communication Policy” for handling and dissemination of
inside information. Under the procedures, heads of business units
shall report to the Directors any potential inside information event
as soon as practicable when it materialises for determining the
nature of developments, and if required, making disclosure.

Annual Review

During the year, the Audit Committee has conducted an annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems. The
results of the review were reported by the Audit Committee to the
Board, based on which the Directors concluded that, for the year,
the risk management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate and the Group has complied with the provisions in
the CG Code regarding risk management and internal control.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERME

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any one or more Shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings at the date of deposit of the
requisition shall have the right, by written notice to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be
called by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such EGM, the Requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expense incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

The requisition in writing should be sent to the Company’s
principal place of business at Room 702, 7/F, Harbour Crystal
Centre, 100 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled at
shareholders’ meetings for adoption. The Board will review
Shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries and
suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or
the company secretary at the above address.

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Union Registrars Limited, via its online holding enquiry at
www.unionregistrars.com.hk, dial its hotline at (852) 2849 3399
or go in person at its public counter at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two
Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong
Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information to its Shareholders. The focus of the
Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete thereby enabling the public as
well as the investors to make rational and informed decisions.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its Shareholders through various means. The Company
updates its Shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports. All Shareholders’ communications are available on the
Company’s website. The website of the Company also provides
email address, postal address, fax number and telephone number
by which Shareholders’ enquiries may be put to the Company’s
Board. Appropriate members of the Board and senior
management are ready to respond to enquiries from Shareholders
and investors on a timely basis.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditors are also
available at the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address
Shareholders’ queries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A special resolution has been passed at the annual general
meeting held at 10 October 2022 to amend and adopt the
amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company in order to comply with the recent amendments
to the GEM Listing Rules.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERER®WE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report (the
“Report”) aims to describe the system construction and
performances of Million Stars Holdings Limited (the “Company”
or “"Million Stars”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we/us”)
in fulfilling environmental and social responsibilities. This Report is
published on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (www.millionstars.hk).

SCOPE OF REPORTING

The Group principally provides internet advertising services to
different customers in Hong Kong and mainland China. The
Group conducted business restructuring from 2021 to 2022, and
relocated its entire operations from Nanjing, China to the office in
Shanghai, China (the “Shanghai Office”). Therefore, the Report
covers operations of the Shanghai Office, where the Group's core
internet business was carried out.

The Report describes the Group’s ESG performances during the
financial year from 1st July 2021 to 30th June 2022 (the “Year").

REPORTING STANDARD

This Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out
in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange on
the basis of the four reporting principles (i.e. materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency). A complete content index
is appended in the last chapter of this Report for easy
comprehension with reference to the Guide.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

In line with the Guide, the Report has applied the following
principles:

Materiality: In order to identify and assess major issues that have
an impact on business stakeholders, we also conducted materiality
assessment surveys through multiple ways of extensive
communication with business stakeholders to determine factors
that have a significant impact on the sustainable development of
the Group.

Quantitative: The Report would perform annual performance
comparison with suitable quantitative data recorded and
estimated by relevant departments of the Group when applicable.
The Group has adopted the national and international standards
such as guidelines issued by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), ISO 14064-1 Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

Balance: We aim to keep our report balanced and make fair
disclosures on critical aspects of our performance, both in terms of
progress made and on-going challenges that we are dealing with.
The information in this Report mainly comes from internal
statistical reports, documents and communication documents
during the reporting period.

Consistency: We have reported in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide issued by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. If there are any changes that may
affect the comparison with previous reports in future, the Group
will add remarks to the corresponding content of upcoming
reports.

FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our ESG approach
and performance. Please share your views with us via the
following contact methods.

Address: Room 702, 7/F, Harbour Crystal Centre
100 Granville Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3589 6590

Fax: (852) 3586 9060

Email: info@millionstars.hk
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERER®WE

THE BOARD’S ESG STATEMENT

The management of Million Stars stays committed to
incorporating corporate social responsibilities into business
operations. The Board accepts full responsibility for the
sustainability of the Group, including formulating strategies,
overseeing the Company’s ESG performance and relevant risks,
and approving the Report. The Report has been confirmed and
approved by the Board in December 2022.

All of the Group’s management will assist the Board in periodic
evaluation of principal risks exposed to the Group and estimation
made for the uncertainties; and participates in formulating
appropriate risk management and internal control measures for
the purpose of on-going monitoring of such risks and assessing
the appropriateness of such estimations.

The directors will also regularly review the implementation
effectiveness of the systems and whether they cover major control
measures, including operations team management, business
development and planning, occupational health and safety,
finance, risk management and investor relations. Representatives
from other business functions are also involved, such as legal and
policy; innovation; safety, health and environmental protection;
and human resources units. Meanwhile, the Board also launches
or formulates strategic sustainable development projects and
carries out strategic discussions on emerging opportunities and
challenges.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD’S ESG STATEMENT (continued)

In the pursuit of business development, the Group is dedicated to
improving its business operation management. As the Group’s
operations are primarily conducted via computer and clerical work
in general, we mainly consume electricity and paper resources.
With an aim to reduce emissions and conserve resources, we
follow the “"4R" waste management strategy and green products,
such as using paper certified by the Forest Stewardship Council to
reduce the impact on the surrounding environment where we
operate. Meanwhile, we have developed a sound employment
system, established a diversified, inclusive, healthy and safe
working environment, and maintained close communication with
employees to understand their needs. Specifically, we prioritized
the safety and well-being of employees during the COVID-19
pandemic, and provided anti-pandemic supplies and flexible
working arrangements for employees in need.

The Group will remain vigilant and comprehensively respond to
the challenges and changes in the business environment, in a
move to seize opportunities presented by the rapid development
of the internet advertising industry. In addition, the Group will
continue to communicate with stakeholders, improve the social
responsibility management system, and further enhance the
Group’s performance in terms of environmental and social
aspects, thereby meeting the requirements of regulators and
investors for sustainable development and creating long-term and
sustainable value for the shareholders and stakeholders of the
Group.
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OUR GOALS BB =

Our Goals
FHH B EZ

Strict compliance with laws
and regulations

BRI

Quality assurance
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Environmental protection
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People-oriented
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Rewarding society

Ol g1t &

62

Legal compliance — Ensure that the Group’s business operations
comply with applicable laws and regulations.

BEAR —BRAEENEKEFFSERERESR

Ethics — Abide by the ethical standards of business integrity and
establish the compliance culture.

BREAE — RTEEREEREE  HIAROXIE -

Product innovation — Proactively enhance the Group's creativity, and
forge an optimized product customized service and management
system.

%uuéﬂ%ﬁ — ﬁ@%ﬂﬁ%élﬂ’ﬁ e e SEE M E f E L AR
Product quallty — Ensure sound product quality to meet customers’
requirements.

EmEE —HBREMERRIE TAaEPHMER-

Environmental management — Regularly monitor various
environmental parameters for the purpose of minimizing related
environmental impacts, so as to conserve resources and reduce
emissions.

RREEE — THERSHAREZ2Y  [ERSHEENREZE
ABRHIE IR KR D BEDA »

Climate change strategies — Regularly review the Group’s approach
to climate change, and identify and respond to relevant physical and
transition risks and opportunities.
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Diversity and inclusiveness — Respect the labour rights and human
rights of all employees, maintain high moral standards, clearly
stipulate human resources management policies, and advocate an
inclusive culture within the Company.

ZNBE —BEMAEINS ITRNRAE #RHSBREEE
WERFTAANBREEBRE - WERARNEBEERNXL -
Work safety — Provide employees with adequate support, and
pleasant and healthy working environment.

Z2TE—RBETRHARTE  RREEENTIERE -

Leverage our expertise and resources to serve the communities where
we operate.

MARMNERMER - SEBGAAELALERRS -

MILLION STARS HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RS- HERERBE

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND BHhESEREEHFG
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The opinions of stakeholders serve as the best reference for #HHEMNER ENSHRIINKL L EE RIEES
improving our operational performance and promoting business FBEREMNRELRE - HfEBEERE R EIEH
development. We communicate with stakeholders (investors, H#(RE#H  -RE BT  HEREEFRSE)#E
shareholders, employees, suppliers and customers, etc.) through 178 - AWEMPINER -

various means to collect their opinions.

Major stakeholders Means of communication
FEHHE BEAR
Shareholders All shareholders can submit their opinions to the Board or the company

secretary by email or other means, and the Board will review and discuss
the relevant opinions on a regular basis. Shareholders can also make
enquiries and discuss with the Board at the annual general meeting.

PRER FERRAAAEBRIEMIANEETERAAIWERLER MES
SR EHENLIWEBER - RETAIXNBRREAFAG LREEFSEF
quﬁqu‘EﬁZuTuﬁﬁ °

Investors We view active communication with investors as essential to the long-term
development of the Group. In addition to handling email and telephone
enquiries, the management also participates in investor meetings to provide
institutional and international investors with answers and explanations in
person on the Group’s development strategies. The suggestions and
feedback from investors are invaluable for us to steer the Group's
development along the right direction.

REE HABEEEREEBEBRUAEENRELRTUER - REEE T
BHRREERIN EBET2NEBREELESZ  NERBOHEBER

BRREEOERERASENERHEE - REENERRREBLHEM
SIEAEE L E RN EERME THESE -

Customers The Group strives to improve its business performance and meet customers'’
expectations, and customers may propose opinions or lodge complaints
through telephone hotlines or e-mails at any time.

5P AEEZENRSEBRAREEFHNNE TR AIUBREREFR
RN EER R E R IRF -

Employees We always encourage employees to express their opinions to the
management to help the Group improve the working environment and
operational standards. The management will heed their opinions earnestly
as the basis for creating a more amiable and efficient workplace.
HM—ExBEIRNERERESRR  WAPRAEENE TERRER
BERE  EREHRREHGRENER  MEAREMRFAES
M TAERIF AV EGS

m
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued)

As there were no significant changes in our business performance
in the 2021/22 financial year as compared with the 2020/21
financial year, the material issues remained substantially applicable
for the 2020/21 financial year. The materiality assessment of
stakeholders was carried out in the following steps with reference
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of
the Stock Exchange. Internal and external stakeholders were
invited in the survey to rate different issues in the fields of
environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operational practices and community investment, so as to
understand how much the stakeholders are concerned about each

issue.
e |dentify key E- Collect e |dentify e Confirm
stakeholders opinions from material material
and relevant stakeholders issues issues
issues
L1l o 15 o HAl o R
BASEI A& BHEER HEEMER HEEMEE
Miam%E
— — —
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued)

Based on the results of the survey, we conducted materiality
analysis and identified the following material issues. As to the
material issues identified in the assessment, the Group has taken
corresponding measures, which are elaborated in subsequent
chapters. The Group will continue to strive to establish diversified,
transparent, honest and accurate communication channels to
provide an important basis for the Group’s ESG strategies.

ESG issues

Exhaust emissions
Greenhouse gas emissions

Management of waste and
recycled materials
Energy management

Water management

Environment and
natural resources
Climate change
Employee benefits and welfare

Equal opportunities
Health and safety

ESGERE

BER B
BERBHR

BEEYREWDHER
REREE

FIKER
BRERRAER

TR
BLEFRFE

FERE
REEZ2

FOESHERRERMTMGE @)

ESG issues

Talent management and development
Procurement and supply

chain management
Product quality

Management and commitment
of product safety
Product innovation
Customer service
Information security and
personal data protection
Intellectual property rights protection
Corporate governance and
risk management
Anti-competition
Community engagement

TECCFEERE - BEEERERAT

BPRERCRAEERET TERZEIN - &
AIHMEEEZRBNT - slabEAER HnE
RUFEE  ARBECRBERSE  XYHERE
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1.

Exhaust Emissions and Greenhouse Gas
Emissions

As a responsible enterprise, the Group makes every
endeavor to take effective measures to reduce exhaust
and greenhouse gas emissions, and fulfill its on-going
commitments to emission reduction. As the Group is
principally engaged in internet advertising agency
services, such business does not have a lot of
discharges to air, water or land.

The Group has complied with the requirements of
relevant environmental protection laws, such as the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and the “Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China” to
mitigate the impact of the Group’s daily operations. No
incident of non-compliance was identified during the
reporting period. The Group has only one commercial
vehicle, which is also the Group’s main source of
exhaust emissions. The Group’s exhaust pollutant
emissions during the reporting period are as follows:

Type of exhaust pollutant

RERS Y R

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) kg
REEY(NO,) T
Sulfur oxides (SO,) kg
&L (S0,) T
Particulate Matter (PM) kg
FERLH) (PM) T

Notes:

— The afore-mentioned vehicle was a newly added by the Group
in 2021/22, and there was no data on such emission in
2020/21 for comparison.

— The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange.
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Exhaust
pollutant emissions
BERIS R E
2021/22

—E_— /=

0.000896
0.024696

0.000066
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Exhaust Emissions and Greenhouse Gas
Emissions (continued)

Proactively responding to China’s low-carbon economy
development policy, the Group carried out the
quantification process with reference to international
standards such as 1ISO14064 and other greenhouse gas
accounting systems. The Group also takes different
approaches to manage and reduce greenhouse gas
emissions, and has implemented an array of policies,
including conducting business operations in electronic
means as much as possible to reduce paper
consumption and avoiding the use of disposable
products. The Group will continue to assess, record
and disclose greenhouse gas emissions and other
environmental data on an annual basis, which will help
to formulate further emission reduction targets in the
future.

The Group is also concerned about carbon emissions
from business travels and transportation, and has
actively implemented a range of measures, including
giving priority to local supplies, managing vehicle use
centrally, and leveraging modern communication tools
to connect with business partners. The Group
generates greenhouse gas emissions in office
operations, including electricity purchased for daily
operations. The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions
during the reporting period are as follows:

A BRE (@)
BRENNRBERBE IR (R)

AEEEBERBEREREEER
MERTEH > RMAEELNEES
Z15014064 F 0 EREZEELRE
BREEMAETT - ZRE B TS
CERERBDBEREHEN LB
B TRBGR - BREKEEFEFE
AIEEE T R A E AR - IF
BRFER—RXEER AREBGE
B ABLEFRBERAERE
PR R EA R SR - BB A RE
—FHERPFER

AEETEEIERIBEST?
BB BB HETT 2 IBE G - 8
EREEERAANBEER KSR EE
BEWER ARERARECEBAT
BHEBRHETER - AEEWN
BRERBHARAMAELE &
TERAFREEMBENEN - K
SEERSHANEEREBIHNE
LI
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

1.

A.

Exhaust Emissions and Greenhouse Gas

Emissions (continued)

L AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRIE (&)

1.

BRENRBERB R (R)

Greenhouse gas emissions

Greenhouse gas BERBHEHRE
emissions type 2020/21 2021/22
BERBHERESR B8 /- —FB-— /=
Total greenhouse gas tonnes of carbon dioxide 2.20 2.23
emissions intensity equivalent/employee
BRERBHRER N tiE g
BRET
Total greenhouse gas emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide 11.02 73.81
equivalent
BRAERBYNE NS LiEE
Direct emissions (scope 1) tonnes of carbon dioxide 0.00 418
equivalent
EEBE(EBE) A _AfbixE 8
Indirect energy emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide 10.90 69.64
(scope 2) equivalent
R B (SE 2) RN _S LiREE
Other indirect emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide 0.12 0.00

(scope 3)
HAb B BER ($5E 3)

Notes:

equivalent
AE—ELIRE S

— Since the Group’s operations in 2021/22 have been moved to
the Shanghai Office, while the reporting scope in report
2020/21 covered the Nanjing office, direct comparison is not

available.

BT

HRAREE-T-—/ - EHEE
ERBELARAE M-%=
T/ FNREREAERBLE -
B R BB LR ©

TR TR AT R IR ASHE N

— The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance on -

68

Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange, 2006 IPCC
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories, IPCC Fifth
Assessment Report, and Average Emission Factors of
Nationwide Grids in 2021.

The Group did not generate direct energy emissions in scope 1
during the reporting period, and scope 2 included indirect
energy emissions from purchased electricity.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

1.

Exhaust Emissions and Greenhouse Gas
Emissions (continued)

Waste Management

The Group attaches great importance to the
management of solid waste, and we implement waste
management strategies to reduce the impact from
disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste on the
environment. The Group undertakes to put into
practice the storage, cleaning, transportation and
disposal of waste and to keep the environment clean
and sanitary. In respect of non-hazardous waste
generated in offices, the Group advocates reducing the
generation of solid waste and encourages employees
to develop good habits of recycling waste, so as to get
twice the result in environmental protection with half
the effort. We have put in place paper recycling bins
next to photocopiers in our offices, in the hope that
employees will work together to recycle waste paper.
After the toner cartridges of photocopiers run out of
toner, we will commission a recycler to recycle them.
The Group operates mainly via general clerical work,
and based on such nature of business, during the
reporting period, the Group did not generate a large
amount of hazardous waste, and the main non-
hazardous waste generated was paper. During the
reporting period, the Group consumed approximately
65 kg of paper (2020/21: 25 kg) while recycling
approximately 65 kg of waste paper. In order to reduce
the use of paper, the Group proactively encourages
employees to put into practice double-sided printing
and reuse all paper printed on one side for printing
non-legal and ordinary company documents.

The Group strictly complies with the relevant legal
requirements related to waste treatment, including the
Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Wastes
Incineration of the People’s Republic of China,
Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste
Storage of the People’s Republic of China and Standard
for Pollution Control on the Hazardous Waste Landfill
of the People’s Republic of China.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RS- HERERBE

BRENNRBERBE IR (R)

BEEYEE

AEEFEEFEREEEM T ENE
B BMEREEMEIERRE A
BREEEEERETEEMHIRER
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# o FHIENHD TR FERR
AEBENSLREHBEKEETE
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—E-E /- —FE50FF)
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

70

2.

Use of Resources

As a member of the global village, the Group is
committed to protecting resources to achieve
environmental and operational benefits. In order to
fulfil the Group's environmental commitment, we have
implemented various measures to improve energy
efficiency and reduce paper and water consumption.
By monitoring and managing the use of resources, the
Group aims to reduce operating costs and carbon
footprint.

Electricity Management

We advocate the use of energy-saving, efficient and
environmentally-friendly construction equipment,
machinery and office appliances recommended by the
state and industry, and give priority to relevant
equipment aiming at gradually improving energy
efficiency.

Total energy consumption of the Group is as follows:

Energy type

RERER

Total energy consumption kWh
REIRFEE FE B

Total energy consumption intensity
(in terms of output of finished
products)

mrErEEE (UK REESE) TERK/BEIAZ
Direct energy consumption kWh
BEEERES TR B
Indirect energy consumption kWh

(electricity)
Mz lREE (1) T FLBF
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BRIE (&)

2.

kWh/number of employees

BRER

FRMWHNN—2F  NEEHD
Rl B R IA ZEBORIR M2 B o
RBETASERREAGE  TFI—
B ARSIE Z BB iR TR RS -
WAORBEMAKE - BEBERE
ENERERER - AEEEEX
ZAYNE 7t

BPREEABR  ITREBME
B B RARMMEIRE #A
M ARE  LETRBEREE
REREBEEERERE

REBEHBFERLIT ¢

Energy consumption

REREE

2020/21 2021/22
B — 85 —F_— /"
13,754.86 136,956.42
2,750.97 4,119.89
N/A 17,097.42
TiEA

13,754.86 119,859



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RS- HERERBE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. RE (&)
2. Use of Resources (continued) 2. EBERERE
Electricity Management (continued) HEEH (B)
Notes: Bt 5
—  Since the Group's operations in 2021/22 have been moved to = HRAAREEE T -— /" FNEE
the Shanghai Office, while the reporting scope in report CEBEBELEERAZE M_ZT =
2020/21 covered the Nanjing office, direct comparison is not T/ FHREHERAMRANAE -

available.

— During the reporting period, the Group's direct energy
consumption included gasoline and natural gas consumption;
and indirect energy consumption included electricity
consumption.

Water Management

The Group understands that precious water resources
are crucial to the earth and the environment. The
water we use mainly comes from municipal pipelines,
and there is no difficulty in souring water during
operation. The Group actively focuses on the
facilitation of water-saving measures. To improve the
awareness of saving water, the Group provides tips on
saving water for internal sharing. Water consumption
by the Group during the reporting period is as follows:

Water consumption

FKE

Total water consumption intensity
BFKERE

m3/employee
MFEKR/BEHRET

Total water consumption m3
BFEKE SR

As the scope of the report for 2020/2021 covers the
Nanjing Office, and the water of the office was
provided by the property management agency, relevant
data could not be collected.

BULRBEEITEE LR -

— AREERREPNEREREERE
VR RRARRNFER - REZERERE
BREENEE -

FKEE

REBRAL B/KRE IR IRE
MEZM - ZMMAERNKEETE
KEMBESE ELEBRETIR
BHUKONE - AEBEBEHRZERN
RESMHRKER  RIESELLH
K EH  AEERHBBHON
KZNEZF EABERNZE -
SEAEREHANAKENT

Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBHRE

2020/21 2021/22
g2 -85 —F_-_— /"
N/A 15.82
e A
N/A 522
i A

MR-_ZE-F /T - —FHRE
BEAERBAE  ZPLAEHH
K ESIERBIRME - BUREE
WEBBEE -
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|<TAIE (continued)

the Environment and Natural Resources

The Group strives to reduce any negative impact on
the environment. The Group is committed to
implementing control measures for energy
consumption and office resources consumption. Given
the nature of its business activities, the Group has
insignificant impact on the environment and natural
resources. Our energy consumption mainly comes from
electricity used in offices. During the reporting period,
the Group had developed a series of measures to
reduce resource use and properly dispose of waste (see
“2. Use of Resources” above for details).

CLIMATE CHANGE

The business scope of the Group covers the business
operations in the PRC. As such, the Group has
identified and assessed the risks of climate change and
developed measures to safeguard the safety of its
employees, including strictly complying with relevant
extreme weather guidelines issued by the government.
The Group has worked out emergency guidelines and
measures to reduce damage from disaster attacks in
the future. The Group will review its policies for climate
change on a regular basis to ensure their effectiveness.
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B. SOCIAL

1.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes that happy and motivated
employees are important factors to achieve continuous
success. Therefore, the Group respects the personal
freedom of employees, establishes and embraces
multiculturalism, resolutely eradicates discrimination,
respects the personal freedom of employees and
protects their personal privacy.

(a)

Recruitment, Promotion and Equal
Opportunity Policies

The Group strives to adopt fair recruitment and
promotion policies and prohibits the sabotage of
equal job opportunities or unfair treatment.
Therefore, the Group strictly implements anti-
discrimination policies and does not tolerate any
forms of harassment. The Group has formulated
the "Anti-discrimination Policy” and recruitment
procedures to ensure that recruitment,
promotion, compensation and benefits, and
talent cultivation are based on education level,
experience and ability and there will be no
discrimination, exclusion, preferential treatment
or any other infringement of equity rights and
benefits due to gender, age, race, religion, etc.,
ensuring that all employees and job applicants
will be treated fairly.

As to the promotion of employees, considering
employees’ development needs and career
planning, the Group has established a
performance assessment system and promotion
mechanism integrating training , use and
evaluation of personnel, thereby building a sound
career platform for employees and creating a
virtuous cycle of personnel cultivation, use and
selection, which in turn lays a sound foundation
and provides sufficient motivation for the
sustainable development of the Group and the
self-growth of employees. In addition, the Group
has also introduced a new system of employee
performance assessment and self-evaluation in
stages, which can comprehensively evaluate the
performance of employees and promote them.

RE HERERES

1. EREZIESR
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(continued

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

(b)

Compensation System

The Group implements the fair compensation
policy, affirming employees’ contribution in an
objective way. The Group fully considers growing
employee compensation in tandem with the
Group's performance, in an effort to ensure that
employees are rewarded fairly based on their
contribution. The Group reviews and re-adjusts
its compensation mechanism annually to maintain
its competitiveness.

In addition, the Group has formulated the
“Management System for Employee Dismissal
and Retirement”, pursuant to which employees
who do not meet the relevant job requirements
or have serious dereliction of duty, or those who
have seriously violated national laws and
regulations or the Group’s relevant rules and
regulations, will be dismissed. The Group will
fully communicate with the dismissed employees,
avoid compulsory dismissal and illegal dismissal,
and ensure that the dismissal process is fully in
compliance with the relevant legal provisions.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Retaining Talents

The Group strives to create a healthy and safe
work culture, assist employees to develop
potential through training and development
courses, and invest in retaining and nurturing
talents. The Group values employee development,
and employees will be promoted and rewarded
after passing phased assessment.

The Group has always strictly complied with
relevant policies and guidelines regarding equal
employment opportunities, child labour, forced
labour and employment, including the “Provisions
on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour”,
“Provisions on Special Protection for Minor
Workers”, the “Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and the “Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China”. During
the reporting period, the Group did not have any
cases of violation of relevant employment laws
and regulations, nor did it receive any complaints
related to recruitment.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and
regulations on remuneration and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits, such as the
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and the “Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. No case of violation was
identified during the period.
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1.

B. #& &)

Employment and Labour Practices (continued) it

(c) Retaining Talents (continued)

The number of employees of the Group classified

by different categories is as follows:

Category

By gender
Male
Female

By employment type
Full-time

By age groups
15-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65 or above

By geographical region
China
Others

BRI 5
EEs

pogid
RRERERE S

2%

RERA R B D
15-24 7%
25-34 7%
35-44 5%
45-54 7%
55-64 5%

65 Bk A

R ER S
&
Hith
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Total number
of employees

(person)

BEAZ(A)

17
16

33
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

1.

(c) Retaining Talents (continued)

The employee turnover rate of the Group

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

classified by different categories is as follows:

Category

By gender
Male
Female

By age groups
15-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65 or above

By geographical region
China
Others

Note:

— The calculation was based on the Reporting Guidance
on Social KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange.
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1. EREZTIERE

(c) REAS(E)

AREBERAIRBREDHEER
MARLLEMT

ZEE R B2

EEs

gk

RERARI B D
15-24 7%

25-34 7%
35-44 5%
45-54 7%
55-64 5%

65 R A

Rt BE D

&
Hitp

GEE

Average monthly
employee

turnover rate (%)
BRATHEERK
bt 3 (%)

3.92
0.52

8.33
2.31
2.50
4.17

2.69
4.17
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2.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a safe work environment,
and all employees will get assistance from the Group
to succeed and make full use of their potential. In
addition, the Group strictly complies with relevant laws
and regulations on occupational health and safety, and
has implemented practical safety management to
effectively eliminate potential safety risks.

The Group has formulated a number of policies on
occupational health and safety, including:

Personal Health
° Provide health examination annually; and

o Demand the management company to clean the
air-conditioner system seasonally.

Work Safety

o Promote effective communication between staff
and supervisors to form a sound safety culture;

o Give daily safety guidance and supervision;
o Provide adequate and neat sanitary facilities;

o Develop a management system with procedures
for employee to voice opinions and file
complaints effectively; and

o Equip employees exposed to occupational
hazards with appropriate personal protective
equipment.

Fire Safety
o Demand the management company to check the

fire exits frequently; and perform fire drill every
year.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

During the Year, the Group adopted a series of
prevention and control measures in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic. According to the suggestions of
local government departments, the Group provided
anti-pandemic supplies for employees, set up access
control and assigned special personnel to provide
training on disinfection operation procedures and
pandemic prevention and control measures, so as to
improve the capacity of pandemic prevention and
control and emergency response. The Group closely
monitored the development of the pandemic and
evaluated its adverse impacts on our business and all
employees, complied with and implemented a series of
measures of the government for combating the
pandemic, so as to effectively eliminate potential safety
risks.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and
regulations on providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards,
such as the “Safety Law” and the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases”, and there was no case of
violation during the period. In addition, over the past
three reporting periods (2019/20, 2020/21 and
2021/22), the Group did not record any work-related
fatalities or lost working days due to work-related
injuries.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

3.

80

Employee Training

The Company firmly believes that discovering and
nurturing a talent team is crucial to the sustainable
development of an enterprise. The Group has
developed “Personnel Training and Development
Policies” to provide induction training for all new
employees and arrange for experienced technicians to
guide new employees.

In addition, the Group always hosted various internal
training courses, lectures and seminars for employees
in the past, providing opportunities for employees to
learn knowledge and develop skills during individual
and professional training, so as to enhance their
capabilities. In 2021, we arranged for the directors of
the Company to participate in training in relation to
equity fundraising rules, corporate governance code,
review of provisions of the Listing Rules on corporate
governance code and provisions of the Listing Rules on
disciplinary powers and sanctions, and annual review
report.

The percentage of employees trained of the Group
classified by different categories and the average
training hours completed by each employee are as
follows:

Category

By gender =R &2
Male xRk

Female zi

By employee type RESERE S
Senior management SREEE
Mid-level management PRERE
Supervisors FE

General staff —RET

Note:

— The calculation was based on the Reporting Guidance on
Social KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange.
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B. SOCIAL (continued) B. #& (&)
4. Labour Standards 4. ZBTXER|
(a) Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced (a) ZIFEFEIMEEELT
Labour

During the reporting period, the Company fully
complied with relevant laws and regulations on
prohibition of child labour and forced labour. The
Company has formulated the “Policy on
Prohibition of Child Labour” and stringent
employment age verification procedures, ensuring
that all accepted applicants are compliant with
legally required employment age. In order to
prevent child labour from being mistakenly
employed, the Group has established a rigorous
age verification process to ensure that all job
applicants reach the legal working age.

In addition, the Group has formulated the “Policy
and Procedures on Prohibition of Forced Labour”
to prevent any situations such as violent threat or
illegal restriction of individual freedom during its
operations and services, and strictly prohibited
forced labour including corporal punishment,
abuse, involuntary servitude, debt servitude or
human trafficking. In addition, the Group has set
up employee opinion boxes to allow employees
to report on child labour and forced labour, so as
to prevent illegal employment of child labour or
forced labour by the Group.

Moreover, the Group has set up a whistle-
blowing mechanism against child labour and
forced labour to encourage employees to
truthfully report any suspicious cases. If child
labour and forced labour is identified, we will
immediately investigate the causes to ensure that
no employees work overtime involuntarily.
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4. Labour Standards (continued) 4. B THER|(E)
(b) Employees’ Rights and Interests (b) ETEZ

The Group has formulated the “Policy on AEEFHIET(EIERLER
Employees’ Freedom of Association”. Employees B BT HBBBEINMER
are entitled to freedom of association and KA ZHER c BT AERNET
collective bargaining. Employees can select staff RE BERXKEZEEIHK
representatives to communicate and exchange SEEEREERRETER M
opinions and suggestions with the Group’s EXBER REZ - AR K
management representatives on behalf of all EESER BIBINRRKE
employees. Meanwhile, the Group values and HE 8 o KREB N IFFEBETHE
pays attention to the information fed back by BREBGZHHREEELRET —
staff representatives. The Group transmits its BT WEBRENREINE
latest update to every employee via email from REEZ HEBIHIER
time to time and listens to employees’ opinions SHEELREEEAEESE
and suggestions actively, and takes responsive o RBEEARE AR -

and timely measures to solve the problems which
employees concern the most, in order to protect
the rights and interests of employees.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

4. Labour Standards (continued)

(c)

Employee Benefits

The Group strictly complies with the labour laws
on work time, rest period and holidays, ensuring
the physical and mental health of all employees.
Therefore, the Group neither promotes working
overtime nor advocates completing unfinished
work at home, insisting on improving work
efficiency during the work period. The Group
believes that offering employees sufficient
benefits will help them become more engaged in
their work. As such, the Group also holds
different levels of activities and reviews the
relevant employee welfare policies through a
welfare committee. Welfare benefits provided by
the Group to employees are as follows:

o Provide social insurance to employees,
° Provide food and beverage allowances;
o Hold monthly birthday parties,

o Arrange flexible working hours for working
mothers to better take care of their families;

o Provide additional breastfeeding leave for
mother employees; and

. Allow staff to work from home in inclement
weather where appropriate.

In addition to providing the basic employee
benefits required by law, the Group also provides
paid birthday leave and Women'’s Day paid leave
for female employees, so as to enable employees
to maintain a work-life balance.

The Group has always strictly complied with
relevant laws and regulations on labour
standards, including the “Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China”. During the reporting
period, the Group found no incidents in violation
of the laws and regulations on labour standards.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

84

5.

Supply Chain Management

The Group lays emphasis on promoting efficient
communications and cooperation with business
partners to jointly maintain the quality and safety of
products and services. The Group firmly believes that
the solid business relationship with its suppliers can
facilitate long-term business development and growth.
The Group has developed a set of well-defined
standard procurement management procedures,
including standardizing the procedures for evaluating,
screening and monitoring suppliers to ensure that the
environmental and social risks associated with the
supply chain are minimized. Suppliers must go through
a series of audit procedures to comprehensively
examine their performance in terms of quality,
environment and safety before being engaged.

Given the complexity of the supply chain, when
selecting suppliers, each business entity of the Group
must consider different conditions and standards,
including price, service, location, productivity (service
capacity) and legal procedures, and the Group will also
conduct special consultations and consider the social
and environmental performance of suppliers as
appropriate. The Group has in place a supplier
management mechanism and carries out on-site audit
according to the risk profile of suppliers. If suppliers are
found to seriously violate their agreed responsibilities
and operating procedures, the Group will terminate
cooperation with them to ensure that the performance
in terms of quality, environment and safety along the
supply chain is in line with the Group'’s policy.

During the reporting period, the Group did not work
with any active suppliers*.

* Active suppliers are suppliers which provide services with a
significant impact on the Group.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing quality products
and services to customers and focuses on customers’
responses to the products sold by the Group. In
addition to adhering to its undertakings, the Group is
also dedicated to providing value-added internet
advertising agency services for customers with
competitive prices. Customers can offer their opinions
or lodge complaints through existing communication
channels. The Group will conduct investigations and
prepare reports based on the responses and take
corrective measures when necessary. The Group has
formulated strict policies and procedures in
manufacturing and selling products.

(a) Customer Service Policy

The Group has established the customer service
department, dedicating to offering superior
services for customers. The Group values the
communication with customers and strives to
ensure that customers’ opinions and complaints
will receive timely handling and satisfactory
responses. The Group has formulated strict
product complaint procedures to better
understand the customers’ opinions on the
Group’s services, so as to continue to improve
operation procedures and service quality and
enhance customers’ satisfaction.
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B. SOCIAL (contmued{

B. #& &)
6. Product Responsibility (continued) 6. EmEMEE)

(b) Customer Data Protection and Intellectual

(b) EFEFEXREFNAAEEBR

86

Property Policy

The Group considers customer data as the
safeguard for safe operation of an enterprise and
healthy development of customer relationships.
Accordingly, the Group formulates sound
customer data protection management systems.
In the process of collecting, processing and using
customers’ personal data or procurement
(including but not limited to loan contracts), such
information is kept in a strictly guarded safe of
the Group, and only personnel with relevant
clearance can access such information. In
addition, the Group has formulated regulations
on safeguarding and protecting intellectual
property, including using authorised products,
photo management, sample control, product
control, artwork and data record. Each project
has relevant regulations in place to prevent
leakage of the intellectual property of the
Group's customers.

The Group strictly abides by the laws and
regulations on product health and safety,
advertising, labeling, remedies and protection of
intellectual property rights, and also observes the
laws and regulations related to privacy, such as
the “Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic
of China”. There was no case of violation during
the period.
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B. SOCIAL (continued) B. #& (&)

7. Anti-Corruption 7. RES

Honesty and fairness are important assets of the
Group's business. The Group endeavours to maintain a
high level of the ethical corporate culture. The Group
sends anti-corruption training rules and relevant
documents to all employees via email on an annual
basis, hoping to ensure that all employees comply with
the Group’s rules in daily operations by developing a
sound risk management code and internal control code
and providing integrity training.

The Group has established and implemented an
internal integrity system to strengthen the integrity of
the employees in governance practices. The Group has
set up effective whistle-blowing procedures to
encourage employees, the management team and
directors to report any misconduct and dishonest
behaviour, such as bribery, fraud and other offences.
Furthermore, the Group has provided clear guidelines
against misconduct such as bribery, corruption,
embezzlement, insider trading and theft of the Group’s
assets, to ensure that employees can report matters of
concern to our human resources department through
various channels in a confidential manner. Where a
case of misconduct is found to be true upon
investigation, the Group will take appropriate
corrective measures and disciplinary action against
those involved. In the event of a criminal offence, the
Group will report the case to the competent authority.
In addition, the Group engages a third-party agency to
audit its internal financials each year.

During the reporting period, the Group complied with
the provisions on prohibiting corruption and bribery
under the “Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China” as well as any legal provisions and requirements
for listed companies in Hong Kong, and was not
involved in any legal prosecution of corruption.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)
8. Community Engagement

The Group is well aware of the importance of making
positive contributions to the communities in which it
operates, and considers the interests of the
communities as one of its social responsibilities. We
believe enterprises and the community are an
indivisible whole because enterprises cannot grow
without the support and assistance of the community.
To fulfil its social responsibilities in a more
comprehensive manner, the Group dedicates itself to
participating in community activities and undertakes
the responsibility of a good corporate citizen for
contributing to the community by encouraging its
employees to participate in charitable and social
services.

The Group will continue to regularly review the goals
and direction of community investment, and supervise
community investment, sponsorship and donation
activities and approval policies. The Group will review
annually whether the social performance of the Group
meets the goals of community investment policies and
community activities, supervise and enhance team
capabilities, and ensure that community investment
policies are implemented in all departments.

OUTLOOK

The Group considers that the currently implemented
environmental protection and social responsibility measures are
sufficient for complying with relevant laws and regulations.
However, the Group will continue to keep abreast of the updated
relevant requirements and conduct reviews from time to time,
striving to strengthen environmental protection and social
responsibility measures.
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX BX(RE - HERERREESDR
=]
Environment Section
A BB -}
Aspect A.1 Emissions Al
FHEAA 23587
KPIA.1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data Al
EIRAN BB RE $R N AR B R BR
KPI'A.1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions A1

(in tonnes) and (where appropriate) intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

EIEAN2 B (BE) RegREE(BE2)AEREBYHNE (LR E) k(@A)
BE(MMAGES B - tﬁﬂmﬁﬁ%

KPIA.1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and (where appropriate) Al
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

EIRAN3 FEAREEEYRE (UNEE) R (ER)ZE (A FES B
SHERIGHE) o

KPIA.1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and (where appropriate) A1
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

EIEA14 FREABEEZYRAE (UNEE) R (ER)ZE (NAFES B -
FIERMETE)

KPI'A.1.5 Description of the emission targets set and the steps taken to reach these A1
targets.

EIRANS R PRATSZ O BERE B 2 R BIEDE L B IR ERERE 2258 o

KPIA.1.6 Description of the methods to handle hazardous and non-hazardous Al

waste, and the description of the waste reduction targets set and the
steps taken to achieve these targets.

EIRAN6 MAEREENEEEEYN L - KR HRER IR RE
B L B RATERIE TR -

Aspect A.2 Use of Resources A2
FHA.2 BERER
KPI'A.2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Electricity, gasor A2

oil) in total (kwWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
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Aspect A.3
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KPI A.3.1
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Aspect A.4
FHEA4
KPI'A.4.1

EIZA4

90

- HEREAR

V/\

ENVIRONMENTAL, S@%L AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

AR E

Environment
BB

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
HRKEREE (MASEBSN - BARBE)

Description of the energy efficiency targets set and the steps taken to
achieve these targets.

PRI LM BEIRE Az B IR A E

BiE L B IRFTERER R 2258 -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, and the water efficiency targets set and the steps taken to
achieve these targets.
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ARFAEI LKz B IR R &

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and
(where appropriate) with reference to per unit produced.
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Environment and Natural Resources

BRERRARER

Description of business activities’ major impacts on environment and
natural resources and actions taken to manage related impacts.
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Climate Change
RIRE1{

ERCREREHETEN

Description of major climate events which have and may have effect on
issuer and hovv they are dealt with.
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A2

A2

A2

Due to the nature

of the Group'’s

business, the use
of packaging

materials is
irrelevant
EREBHE -
1 B Rk R
RNEE B EBI
il

A3

There were no
incidents that
have a significant
impact on the
environment and
natural resources
during the period
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Social Section

B e 0]
Aspect B.1 Employment B1
7 HEB.1 ==
KPI'B.1.1 Total number of employees by gender, type of employment (e.g. full-time B1
or part-time), age group and geographical region.
$E1FB.1.1 RIER  ERAR (R BERE) - FicdR Rtz E D e ESEE -
KPIB.1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. B1
#51¥B.1.2 RIER - FleRI R RE HHEEMALLE -
Aspect B.2 Health and Safety B2
7 HEB.2 BERZR
KPIB.2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities in each of the last three years ~ There were no
(including the reporting year). work-related

fatalities in the
past three years

including the
reporting period
$51%B.2.1 BE=F (BRERFE)BFEAITHOARKLLE - BERE RN
BE=FREHA
TUrihsEs
KPIB.2.2 Lost days due to work injury. There were no

work-related
accidents during
the reporting

period
$51¥B.2.2 ETEEATIERE - HEHRIRE
ITEES
KPIB.2.3 Description of the occupational health and safety measures adopted, B2
how they are implemented and monitored.
$E1EB.2.3 R P ER AN A B SR (R FR B 22 2 10 B - A RRMERAIT REER 90K ©
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Social Section
B HE -}
Aspect B.3 Development and Training B3
5 EB.3 BRI
KPI B.3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category B3
(e.g. senior management, middle management).
¥E1EB.3.1 RURIREERRN(NERERE  PREER)ASHNZIEERS
55 ©
KPIB.3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and B3
employee category.
§1%B.3.2 IR NREEEMNE D FREB TN TR -
Aspect B.4 Labour Standards B4
FEB.4 B IR
KPI B.4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child B4
and forced labour.
§1%B.4.1 i S B NEEA B R E T MR H ST -
KPI B.4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. No violations
during the period
1E1%B.4.2 i E RN ER B ISP BRI 225 - ARG ERIT
oL
Aspect B.5 Supply Chain Management C1
J EB.5 HrEsEEE
KPI B.5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. During the

reporting period,
the Group did not
work with any
active suppliers*

¥E1EB.5.1 iR B DR HEREE - RIRERA - K&
B R R AR
BILERm*A1F
KPI B.5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of All suppliers of the
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are Group (if any)
implemented and monitored. follow the Group's

practice for
engagement of
suppliers
§1%B.5.2 BB REEENED - MERTERENHERNEE - Uk XEEMBEHE
HEARITRERTA - (e He
RAEENEA
e g s
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KPI'B.5.3

¥E12B.5.3

KPIB.5.4

E{ZB.5.4

Aspect B.6

J5HB.6
KPI B.6.1

E1ZB.6.1

KPIB.6.2

512 B.6.2
KPI B.6.3
E1ZB.6.3
KPI B.6.4
$512B.6.4
KPI B.6.5

$51ZB.6.5

Social
e

Description of the practices related to the identification of environmental
and social risks in each section of the supply chain, as well as related

implementation and monitoring methods.

ft A R RS ERANRE R ERBRNED - A LBEHR

TTMEEERITA

Description of the practices that promote the use of environmentally
friendly products and services when selecting suppliers, as well as related

implementation and monitoring methods.

st RE H AR (R 2 ARRER MREED] - LANIBREAT

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety

and health reasons.

EEAEEXREM

Number of products and service related complaints received and how

they are dealt with

4

i

TR R EREHMALRKN A DL

RIERNEm MRS IR B AN B TTE -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual

property rights.

ol B E R B R B EE BRI o

Description of quality assurance process and product recall procedures.

g Bt E BiE MEMBIWER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they

are implemented and monitored.

W EEBERRERALRBBOR - URBEMITRERTA -

R FFERE - 21N

Section
=311

C1

Cc2

During the period,
no products were
required to be
recalled due to
safety and health
reasons

HAARE Em
2 BERIEMR
mZ7amE i

There were no
complaints about
quality issues
during the period
HAARBEERE
B R 3

(@)

Cc2

Cc2
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Social Section

HeE =8

Aspect B.7 Anti-Corruption c3

FHB.7 RES

KPI B.7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought There were no
against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the corruption lawsuits
outcomes of the cases. during the period

$E1EB.7.1 RERPNHBETASNEEEREWEEEANE THFARMENEA R BHAREEGH
AR © ARM

KPIB.7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how C3
they are implemented and monitored.

E1EB.7.2 Ry SRR RIER - ARMEEBITRERFE -

KPIB.7.3 Description of the anti-corruption training provided to directors and Cc3
employees.

$51EB.7.3 MmEERE TRENRESFEI -

Aspect B.8 Community Investment c4

7 HB.8 HERE

KPI B.8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, c4
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

#51%B.8.1 EIEREE(WHE  RREH FTHFR BE b 875)-

KPI B.8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area (e.g. money or time). Cc4

#E1%B.8.2 EFEIHBMEBAEIR (NS EFRE)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

CCTH CPA LIMITED
REXEEEAERAE

A

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MILLION STARS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Million
Stars Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the"”Group”) set out on pages 105 to
227, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit and loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the comparability
of the current year’s figures and the corresponding prior year's
figures as described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of
our report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

B 2 RETRE

HEEERARAFAZIMIRR
(REASHESEMK L BRAA])
REZR

AIZERED (A TS [ 3R] ERFT S EERB
Rar(TErm ) MEMBAR (SEA[EE
BDENREI5EZ227TE 2 HFAMBHRE - &
PEER - _FRNA=THZEAFHIR
MRRBEZALFREZEREGER  HRA1HE
mMREMERRER  SAERESHRNEA
RemnEx  UWREAMBHRANE  8RE
SETBORME -

BFIRR - BARE [REBERWEE| —&ifT
AARFREHFEBEFEEEEF 2 AL MER]
EREENFEI RAVBRRERETES
stEing ((BAEGEAE]) BH2EEMH
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MBARREBEZAEFEZHEEMBRA
FiEAREeRE  MRERBEBRREN 2
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BHMEREFESAMASHEM 2 BEENE
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Comparability of the current year’s figures and the
corresponding prior year’s figures

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2021 (the “2021 Consolidated Financial
Statements”) were audited by us and our report of disclaimer of
audit opinion on the 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements was
issued on 15 August 2022, which include the following matters
that we were unable to determine:

(i)

(ii)

96

whether the opening carrying amounts of the intangible
assets and interest in a former associate, Shenzhen Yidao
Network Co., Ltd. (“Yidao Network”), at 1 July 2020 of
approximately HK$32,993,000 and HK$32,162,000
respectively are appropriately brought forward from those
balances as at 30 June 2020. Any adjustments to be made
on the opening carrying amounts of intangible assets and
interest in Yidao Network at 1 July 2020 may have significant
impact on the opening balance of retained profits and
exchange reserve of the Group as at that date.

whether any adjustments are required, should there be any
adjustments necessary to be made on the intangible assets
as stated in paragraph (i) above, to be made to the gain on
disposal of the Group’s intangible assets and gain on
termination and revision of acquisition of intangible assets
amounted to approximately HK$2,444,000 and
HK$3,741,000 respectively recognised for the prior year
ended 30 June 2021; impairment losses on intangible assets
recognised or reversed, if any, as to be charged or credited
to profit or loss of the Group for the prior year ended 30
June 2021; amortization charge of intangible assets
amounted to approximately HK$5,494,000, as charged to
profit or loss in respect of the Group for the prior year ended
30 June 2021; and the related disclosures as set out in the
2021 Consolidated Financial Statements.

MILLION STARS HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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(i)

(ii)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(i) whether any adjustments are required, should there be any
adjustments necessary to be made on the interest on Yidao
Network as stated in paragraph (i) above, to be made to
impairment loss on interest in Yidao Network recognised or
reversed, if any, as to be charged or credited to in profit or
loss of the Group for the prior year ended 30 June 2021,
and exchange surplus relating to the Group’s interest in
Yidao Network amounted to approximately HK$3,074,000,
as recognised in exchange reserve of the Group in respect of
the prior year ended 30 June 2021; and the related
disclosures as set out in the 2021 Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Our opinion on the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the current year ended 30 June 2022 is modified because of the
possible effect of the aforementioned matters on the
comparability of the current year’s figures and the corresponding
figures for the prior year ended 30 June 2021.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to the section headed “Going Concern Basis”
set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, that the
Group incurred net losses attributable to the owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$99,493,000 and
HK$44,130,000 for the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021
respectively; and the Group had current liabilities due within one
year amounted to approximately HK$30,006,000 at 30 June 2022
while cash and bank balances included in current assets amounted
to approximately HK$19,907,000 as at that date. These conditions
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. In
light of all the measures and arrangements detailed in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements, the directors are of the
opinion that the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

B 2 RETRE
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B ZRMRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

BEEER

RETEEAAMRMAZIERAGMS - Wi
1Fﬁ%§+$ﬁ;ﬁf'ﬁ2,q AMBHRATREZNS

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 18 ;AZI$IETJEA&1F3$.#%gj"f,i?/\ﬁﬁf“ﬁ%

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis for

R AEREETEE - AT EURSEE
RUEBEE - 5 [REERMEE| B
ZEN %zﬁEJEEEETL%IEEMEAﬁdFﬁE’J
BETHI 2 FERETER -

Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated

in our report.

Key Audit Matters

RREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BN ELNTEERRETEE

1. Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

E2 WA B HE 3t 20

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately HK$Nil after allowance for doubtful debts
of approxmately HK$23,257, 000

N ZFR +E| 0 SEERE S ERGK
WEATT B2k %ﬁﬁ}%’fﬁiﬁB 257,000 7T ©

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 0 to 60 days. Management
performed periodic assessment on the recoverability of
the trade receivables and the sufficiency of allowance
for doubtful debts based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade
receivables, historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and amount of
realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going
trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate the
expected credit losses for the impairment assessment.
An independent valuer was engaged by management to
prepare the valuatlon report to assess the |mpa|rment

—RIBEAT - BE I&%RIEZTETHHM¥Oi609E

ERERATAES RN K RIEOER
T e LN T EOSE EEYT vl
b BVl L o
55 5 R ) B 1 2 R BB e 2
R ERENE AT Y B EPEE AR
BRI AR A RET AT BE R
R BB SR (AR E RS T

We focused on this area due to the material amount of
gross trade receivables before impairment loss recognised
and the impairment assessment of trade receivables under
the expected credit losses model involved the use of
significant management judgements and estimates.

B 7 B 5 FE Wk IR 48 58 (R F10RLRE SRR (ELIES 18 Al ) B
EK&TEHWEEEETET%“TE’J%’%F‘H&mlﬁmﬁuﬂﬁ
g%@%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ C E A EIE R

ohs ©
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1. EBZEWRERZREEFE

Our procedures in relation to assessment of
recoverability of trade receivables included:

H IR IR E 5 WA 2 A Bl O EHE AR R B3

e Assessing the professional competency and
independence of the valuation expert engaged by
management;

o MEEEEMEREGEERNEEEN BB ;

J Assessing whether trade receivables had been
appropriately grouped by management based on
their shared credit rlsk characteristics;

.« FEESEEFESTEAEEERBAARE
L mg i

J Testing the accuracy and completeness of the data
used by management to develop the expected loss
rates and assessing the sufficiency, reliability and
relevance of that data;

o AISEIBIE A ST E TE A X A A B S R
ERTRM  WHEZFRENREL  AIEE
NAEEE

o Testing the calculation of the expected loss rate
and evaluating the reasonableness of the forward-
looking adjustments made to reflect current and
forecast future economic conditions;

o  AIFAEEEE XA E RFZAEL AR B AT
R FEBIAR A AR R RIBE M SR B A IR

e Testing the accuracy of the ageing of trade
receivables on a sample basis to supporting

documents; and
. Tﬂﬂffiﬁﬁu B R E 5 FE R BRI M ZERE N

J Testing the calculation of expected credit loss
provisions applying the provision rates to the age
categories of the trade receivables outstanding at
the reporting date.

o  EANKRERMBHARKRNE S REKE IE@EM%E
RlEY B - EUW%EHEEEJESTE%&%E’J#
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Key Audit Matters

BREEE

BYZERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BN ERNAEEEREETSEE

2. Impairment assessment of deposits,
prepayments and other receivables

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements
BRI EIREN 321

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had deposits,
prepayments and other receivables of approximately
HK$71,577,000 after allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$84,000,000.
R-E-—FA=+H B5EHEEEK:  BNEX
B R H A fEURFRIEH) 71,577,000 7T - B0k RERE
1#%984,000,00078 T °

Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the deposits, prepayments and other
receivables and the sufficiency of allowance for doubtful
debts based on information including credit profile of
different counterparties, ageing of the deposits,
prepayments and other receivables, historical settlement
records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going business relationships with the relevant
counterparties. Management also considered forward-
looking information that may impact the counterparties’
ability to repay the outstanding balances in order to
estimate the expected credit losses for the impairment
assessment. An independent valuer was engaged by
management to prepare the valuation report to assess
the impairment.

ERERBIREFHINEENRR #£E  ARNKIE
&EmFW RIBMERES - B ERGTH - BEERMN
M BIRAREREROTEHRRERSEAREE@Y
FHINBEEIURTENE RS  ANIEREAM
FEMCRRIR P Us [l 14 Ko REBRBE 0 78 B IR HETT S8 B AT AR ©
ERENERTEHFHEERNEEGERENOARE
HER  UEEHREMENEBREEEE - BBEZ
B HEMRREERS - AT HRE -

We focused on this area due to the material amounts of
the respective gross balances before impairment loss
recognised and the impairment assessment of deposits,
prepayments and other receivables under the expected
credit losses model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates.

MR R AR CRIVBERRERER) BBEE AR
RHEEEEERE THRE - FANRIE R HE i KK
HREN LS MERERNEEE A6 kst Bt
PR UL SR -

2. RBE - ANRERAGERKEZRENDE

Our procedures in relation to assessment of
recoverability of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables included:
BMEERE  FANE
BT EIR T B4E -

K IR N EL A B MR IR 2 R R B

o Assessing the professional competency and
independence of the valuation expert engaged by
management;

o HMEEEEMRBMHEZERNERENIBIUIMK

o Assessing whether deposits, prepayments and
other receivables had been appropriately grouped
by management based on their shared credit risk
characteristics;

e FHMbRE - BNE
B EREHE KR

KIR N H A R FIREEERE

SERRFREESERR

o Testing the accuracy and completeness of the data
used by management to develop the expected loss
rates and assessing the sufficiency, reliability and
relevance of that data;

o  AIHEIRER AT ERBEE XA IR ERE
ERxRMN  WHEZEFRENTEL  AIRE
KABRAE

o Testing the calculation of the expected loss rate
and evaluating the reasonableness of the forward-
looking adjustments made to reflect current and
forecast future economic conditions;

o AIFTEHEBERXNFEMTZAELARERE A
R IEBIAR KA BB AIRE MRS IR

o Testing the calculation of expected credit loss
provisions applying the provision rates to the age
categories of the other receivables outstanding at
the reporting date.

o EMRNERE B H R AR WER R H At B YR IR AR B R

PR BE R - AIRTEEEEERBEENTE o
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B ZRMRE

Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BN ERNAEEEREETSEE

ERETEE
3. Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
ERE A ERENF 15

As at 30 June 2022, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment is HK$4,740,000.
Impairment loss amounted to approximately
HK$9,367,000 has been recognised for the current year
on the property, plant and equipment.

RZZBE__FRA=1+H  EEEYE BEIERE
ZBRME(E#4,740,00087C - RFEEHME - BER
R AR R B R 149,367,000 8 7T °

We focused on the impairment assessment of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment as the
magnitude of the property, plant and equipment is
significant and management assessment of the market
approach involves judgments and estimates, key
assumptions including market prices.

HMRYE BERRBZAREAREREHT S
EZ AR R A R AR B RR (BIETISE
B) > A MEIR EEEYWE - BEKRE M
BTG °

100

3. W% BEREREZBERE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment included:

BFREYR - BELRBIRENENEFEE

J We obtained an understanding of the Group's
impairment assessment procedures, including the
valuation model adopted, assumptions used by
management and independent external valuer
appointed by the Group.

o HME BREEZREMEERFETTH B
PARAEGERE  EEEXRANRRKRE &%

B &R ERBILIMEBEERD o

. We evaluated the competence, capabilities, and
objective of the external valuer.

o FHMFHEINEDAERMZER - BEHRFHIL -

J We challenged the key assumptions including
market prices by comparing with information
publicly available.

e HMBBEEAFASEMETHER  BRERR
R (BEMIHER) -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

B 2 RETRE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 19 January 2023

Kenneth Yee Lai Chan
Practising Certificate Number: P02095

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F., Tower 2,
Kowloon Commerce Centre,

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SeREnkEMEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BIZE_T__FA=THILFE

2022
—Z=—= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Revenue PN 5 46,442 209,261
Cost of services ieIn %N (45,577) (193,473)
Gross profit ES 865 15,788
Other income, gains and losses, net Em A -~ Wz MEIE 5 7 (69,781) (19,806)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (433) (578)
Administrative expenses THAX (29,716) (27,108)
Share of results of associates oyl 18 - (11,031)
Finance costs IR DN 8 (300) (1,128)
Loss before tax MREATE R (99,365) (43,863)
Income tax expenses FIEBiRX ©) (128) (267)

Loss for the year attributable to AATEEE AEML

owners of the Company FREE 10 (99,493) (44,130)
Other comprehensive income: Hap 2w
ltems that may be reclassified Al EFM D BEERN

to profit or loss: 5H :
Exchange differences arising on MERINEBEEZ

translating foreign operations EHZER 3,475 7,436
Share of exchange differences of JEAGE S N RIE R =58

associates - 3,630
Other comprehensive income FREMEZEKE

for the year 3,475 11,066
Total comprehensive expense RKABEEAEEER

for the year attributable to THBXEE

owners of the Company (96,018) (33,064)
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2022
=== T —F
(HK cents) (HK cents)

(&4l) (B
Loss per share gFREBA 14
Basic HAK (20.60) (10.51)
Diluted s

N/ARiE A N/A 7~ 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

At30June 2022 M-ZE-_—FxA=+H

2022 2021
—s=-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - REREE 15 4,740 18,400
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 16(a) 469 445
Intangible assets mEEE 17 - -
Interests in associates iR YNCIA 18 - =
Goodwill BE 19 - =
Prepayments for acquisition of WEEZE - B &
property, plant and equipment Sz B A 15(q) = 29,607
5,209 48,452
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables B B REWE 20 = 28,819
Deposits, prepayments and Ze - BANFRER
other receivables H b fEUFRIE 21 71,577 66,724
Amount due from an associate i G ) /NI P/ 18 = -
Cryptocurrency mEgs 22 10 -
Bank and cash balances RIT MR L5 23 19,907 1,446
91,494 96,989
Assets classified as held-for-sale DEABELEZEE 24 - 52,861
91,494 149,850
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables Z SN FIE 25 6,572 7,907
Accruals and other payables FEETE R & HAD B IE 26 10,963 14,031
Advance payments received from A1 SREE PTG BN K18
share subscription 27 - 6,300
Amount due to a shareholder JEIN — R AR R IE 28 - 354
Amount due to a director B —REEFHIA 28 - 654
Borrowings BE 29 9,326 10,162
Loan from a shareholder and director B —ZREREEZER 28 604 -
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 16(b) 286 454
Current tax liabilities EREEE 2,255 4,258
30,006 44,120
Liabilities associated with assets HEABARELEZ
classified as held-for-sale EEEHEzEE 24 = 22,412
30,006 66,532
Net current assets RBEEFEE 61,488 83,318
Total assets less current liabilities #EERAEBAE 66,697 131,770
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CONSOLIDATED ST. TEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B MR R
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At30June 2022 MZ-ZE_-_=—FNA=+H

2022 2021
—=E-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings B 29 13,768 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(b) 177 =
13,945 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 52,752 131,770
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital [N 31 4,880 4,200
Reserves #HE 47,872 127,570
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE 52,752 131,770

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 227 were S 1052227 BEHGE A BBREACHESEER
approved by the board of directors on 19 January 2023 and are —ZE_=F—A+AB#EI B THEERE

signed on its behalf by: w=E
ZHU Yongjun TIAN Yuan
KEE H
Director Director
= EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BIZE_T__FA=THILFE

Share Share Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits
BROEE ZERE EL@EE KREBEAN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(note)
(P &E)
At 1 July 2020 RZZE-TFtA—H 4,200 44,582 1,806 (17,297) 131,543 164,834
Loss for the year FRNEE = = = - (44,130)  (44,130)
Other comprehensive income R E M2 H K
for the year
Exchange differences on MESBINEREE Y
translation of foreign bE N =R
operations - - - 7,436 - 7,436
Share of exchange JE {1 B =N A RE N,
differences of associates =5 = - - 3,630 - 3,630
Total comprehensive income  F A2 W #4258
for the year - - - 11,066 (44,130)  (33,064)
At 30 June 2021 and R-Z-—%XA
1 July 2021 =tHRZZE=—F
+H—H 4,200 44,582 1,806 (6,231) 87,413 131,770
Loss for the year FRNEE - - - - (99,493) (99,493)
Other comprehensive income  F R E fh 2 FEUE
for the year
Exchange differences on MEFNEBREE L
translation of foreign bE N =R
operations - - - 3,475 - 3,475
Share of exchange FE{GEE SN TIFEH
differences of associates =5 - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income A2 & 850
for the year - - - 3,475 (99,493) (96,018)
Issue of shares (Note 30) TR (M3 30) 680 16,320 - - - 17,000
At 30 June 2022 R-B-—4
~NA=1H 4,880 60,902 1,806 (2,756) (12,080) 52,752
Note: B sE -

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for business enterprises in the People’s 1B #EFIE AR EMBEI([FRE ) WHEBECEEZLER - B
Republic of China (the “PRC"), a portion of the profits of the entities which are ~ HEFM B MO M EREBRER R EFERH
registered in the PRC has been transferred to the statutory reserve which is - EZEMELEREZTERAZ50%F  iEEES
restricted as to use. When the balance of such reserve reaches 50% of the capital of ~ {EHE—F 2% - E T EAEEESIEEIPHEEZ T H
that entity, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve can be - LAKBEFE ZBHESANILE - A ARZER
utilised, upon approval of the relevant authority, to offset prior years' losses or to  R1& AT FEE 2 BB ERAN 2 HIK25% °

increase capital. However, the balance of the statutory reserve must be maintained

at a minimum 25% of capital after such usage.
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CONSOLIDATED STA‘(L!MENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

2022
—E-C—

HK$’000
7

HK$'000
TETT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETPELZ

ACTIVITIES BERE
Loss before tax BRELATE (99,365) (43,863)
Adjustments for: CEUTSERFE

Interest income MEMA (723) (1,839

Finance costs B G RKAR 300 1,128

Depreciation of property, plant and Y - R NGRIE

equipment e 6,786 2,204

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 597 2,796

Amortisation of intangible assets mILEEEH - 5,494

Share of results of associates FE(LESE & N B4R - 11,031

Gain on disposal of assets classified as HEDBERFIELEZ

held-for-sale BEZWE (9,592) =
Gain on disposal of intangible assets teEEPEE W - (2,444)
Gain on termination and revision of W RIEITUE &

acquisition of intangible assets BE 2 W - (3,741)
Gain on deemed disposal of BREHE B2 5

an associate = - 211)
Gain on termination of lease BIFHEE Rz W

contracts - (1,366)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER&E

plant and equipment Z BB 1,609 -
Loss on write off of property, plant and W - BB K&

equipment o) it = - 7,665
Impairment loss recognised on trade and ERE S &kHMEK

other receivables, net FIEREEE T 69,210 21,432
Impairment loss recognised on property, EHRAYE  HER

plant and equipment HERERE 9,367 270
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill ERREERERRE - 2,406
Reversal of impairment loss on amount JE Uy — PRI = A 7]

due from an associate SIERAEEEED - (1,415)

Operating loss before working capital EEESEHE 2

changes I EE (21,811) (453)
Decrease in trade receivables B S REYRIER D 20,631 5,495
Increase in deposits, prepayments and Ze - ENFIEREM

other receivables JE W SR IR AN (40,671) (30)
Increase in cryptocurrency NE G EEIE N (40) -
Decrease in trade payables B 5 e R IER (1,335) (18,212)
Decrease in accruals and other payables FEET B A K& E Ath KB

NSRS (3,068) (11,566)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to a director JEft—ZEEFHIE GF)

N (654) 654
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to JEN— BRI R ZECRD)

a shareholder e (354) 2
Cash used in operations KEMAZRS (47,302) (24,110)
Interest received B IFLE 723 1,839
Income tax paid EAETEH (2,131) (1,520)
Net cash used in operating activities KRR RS T (48,710) (23,791)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
wh 3 IE!% II:E%

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

2022 2021
—m—— —=—

—_—

HK$'000

HK$'OOO
?/;FSTE

Notes

B et FERT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFBELEZELSRE

Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BEIKE (59,622) (54,920)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant TEME BER

and equipment BEZFT1GIA 60,024 =
Proceeds from disposals of assets classified as HE B A

held-for-sale BEZFSHIA 40,635 =
Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets e ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ@fé’\ - 9,080
Proceeds from disposals of interests in ﬁ’%ﬂﬁﬁ BN FIRERFTE

associates PO - 22,412
Advances from associates pE) T VNGIE S - 6,354
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B RITIF RO - 5,857
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing WERESEL,/ (FIA)Z

activities REFHE 41,037 (11,217)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEBELRERE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BITE MR FTIS5RIA 10,700 -
Advance payments received from BR17 SR B8 P18 BT ERIE

share subscription 36(b) - 6,300
Borrowings raised Ei%%fﬁ 36(b) 13,768 8,290
Repayment of borrowings BREE 36(b) (234) (28,995)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEE 36(b) (619) (2,240
Interest paid BRFE 36(b) (293) (858)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEZHELE (A Z

financing activities REeF58 23,322 (17,503)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERAEEEY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i (o) B 15,649 (52,511)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHzRERBESEEY

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,446 49,895
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [ERE8) 7 Hg & 2,812 4,062
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERCZEESRBESEEY

END OF THE YEAR 19,907 1,446
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH FRZAEGRBSEEY

EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR H
Bank and cash balances IRITMIR 45k 19,907 1,446
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M wRME

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

112

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability. The address of the registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is Room 702 A&B, 7/F,
Harbour Crystal Centre, 100 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
provision of internet advertising agency services, mobile
payment technical support services and digital assets
business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company, unless otherwise stated.

The trading of shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange suspended as from 4 October 2021 and resumed
on 26 September 2022.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Going concern basis

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have considered the future
liquidity of the Group in view of its recurring losses incurred.
The Group incurred net losses attributable to the owners of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$99,493,000
and HK$44,130,000 for the years ended 30 June 2022 and
2021 respectively and the Group had current liabilities due
within one year amounted to approximately HK$30,006,000
at 30 June 2022 while cash and bank balances included in
current assets amounted to approximately HK$19,907,000
as at that date.

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, the
Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

In assessing the appropriateness of the adoption of the
going concern basis in the preparation of the Group's
consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company prepared a cash flow forecast, covering a period
of twelve months from the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements (the “Cash Flow Forecast”)
with careful consideration to the future liquidity and financial
performance of the Group and its available sources of
financing. In preparing the Cash Flow Forecast, the directors
of the Company have taken into account (a) the cash inflow
from the loan amounted to RMB30,000,000 obtained by the
Group which was granted by a PRC entity owned by a
director and shareholder of the Company subsequent to the
end of the reporting period, details of which are set out in
note 40 below; and (b) the following measures which the
Group makes every effort to implement:

(i)  to obtain additional funds by equity financing and
long-term debt financing to finance the Group's
working capital and the repayment of existing debts
when they fall due;

(i)  to negotiate with the lenders of the other borrowings
and creditors for the extension of repayments of those
borrowings and trade and other payables to a date
when the Group has adequate working capital to serve
the repayments;

(i) to formulate and closely monitor business strategy for
the Group to generate cash flows from its existing and
new business operations.

Based on the Cash Flow Forecast, assuming the above
measures can be successfully implemented as planned, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
would have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations to enable the
Group to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company considered that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M wRME

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the expected outcome of
the implementation of the measures, the Group might not
be able to continue to operate as a going concern and the
adoption of the going concern basis for the preparation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements might not be
appropriate. Under these circumstances, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying amounts of the
Group's assets to their net realisable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

3(a).APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on or after 1 July 2021 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

MILLION STARS HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2.

A T B 3R 2R BV B 28 ()

FESEEE (R

AR B RBEE IR T T2 S MR TR HAAK
R AEEFREEERSEL SR ERE
28 ARMBEKEEERUAEEN
HAEVBHRERAETEE - RZFBN
T AEEAFHHBUSGAEEEEN
AR (B OB B AT B3R R R - DABLEAAT A
EREAE —PRERRERE - WiSERD
BENERDAENRIEH D BRARDE
ENMRBAE - ZFHBNFEL RNZ
Fr B M EHRAR AR -

3(a). ERFIREETERMBRESE

B ([ &R BHRELER )

RAFERFER 2 EERTERMBR
HER

RAFE  AEECEREAEESAE
~E([FEGHAMAE D) BRHBLN _-F
——F AR ZRARZAREFE
AR 58 Bl A 28 2 A MRIER] B AR # 3RS
R URBZE B HREK

BB RS ER|
Fo5% - BEG:
R Z 395 -
BB RS
ERETH
BB BHRE
ERIE 45K
BB BHRE
R E 1657
(BETA)

BB SRS ER|
F 165 (BETA)

BB SRS ER|
F 165 (BETA)

IEEEE
— BIBE

Covid-19 /8 &
BR

—E-—&XxA=+H
1% Covid-19 18

HEeER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HZE_—F

3(a). APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework!

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020"

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts?
October 2020 and
February 2022

Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture3

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback*

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these new and amendments to HKFRSs, which are not yet
effective, will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

B FFERE .

—EXNA=ZTHILFEE

3(a). ERHFI KRBT ERUBRESE

A (TEBMBEREER ) (@)

C MR RERBFET REBTER

Pt 4R 2 A

AREBWEIEFEA NI BMERKRE
MR RAEIER] BB B E 2R -

EBHBRLLN
ESCHES
FE SR
£16% (B51%)

E% ﬁ W

(1/ DTZJS)

BB ISR 2R
%WHA@%:
“EF+ARCE
——E-AEE
BAFESRA 2ER 5
17 (BEI))
BEBGHERE 15
CCHEN

%

409

BRRILE %
LE AT RE
R
2% (3] 5)

EEgEAZe R
(BiA)

%

HR o

~
/5

SRR

VNG
— BEEARIRAT
BIIA"
BERH —RBITEH
B AR
“E-\FEx-E-F
FEBUBRE LA
B g

RERAH#?

HaEDBRRBRIE
MBAREERER
% (ZZ-TF)M

SHBERTR

D 1$E+E}]E%Z

o
o

*“i
Xt
0
e
|_H:
=
!

N

\—
il S
B~
o
y =+
o OO
=
=
S
=
i

i
K
ol
ggl_

Ka
> oM
“ N
o
i
EE

IR O
i

EROENEERE"

— R F - AR KRBT EE

R =H - A Bz BN FEHE

: RFFE B #isk 2 BB F IR AR -

¢ MN_Z_NF—A—BRZ&RABHFEHR

ER o

RRABEZTFATRAZ ST R ARERZHE]
KRB RT BB 15 S RN AT 8 R A9 R
KT EHGEMBERRELEATE

g2EreRam 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M wRME

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).

116

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value-in-use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZT-_—F A A=+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3(b). E R FTBUER (&)
(continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value AN P EREMS A FEFERE
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on AEEAENHABBAIBREERAT
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value Bt 2B ARBHAERBNEZU S
measurements are observable and the significance of the RE—R FHRIE=H - FHELOT

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active e ZERBABBREBNGEAH
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity AARENEREES B BN TR
can access at the measurement date; TISHRIE (REFHE)

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices s FIHAWMAHBEBEREELBEER
included within Level 1, that are observable for the B o8 fH 8 3 F] R SR A A B A\ BUR
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and (BE—RABENRERIN - &

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or s ZE-HRBHABEBEEEEXBENT
liability. AERH AR -

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FESHBEEHINAT -

(a) Basis of consolidation (@) #EEE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the RENBHREBREARRNY B R
financial statements of the Company and entities RARBARR AR E B R A
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control MWEBNMBERE - KRRFE T
is achieved when the Company: TESR T EIS IS4 -

e has power over the investee; o  TAIHREHRITEES

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from o HAZEREHREBMALER]
its involvement with the investee; and BoHHERKERAEE R

HRER &

e has the ability to use its power to affect its e FBENMEBEENUZEHMD
returns. ¥ o

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an W32 B R IB BN £ SR oI5 | 4

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there WM=ZETEMN—HHXZEEEZ 8l

are changes to one or more of the three elements of REBEMTHERTEHIREY

control listed above. Re
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M wRME

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

118

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Business combination
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3(b). E KSR (&)
(continued)
(b) Business combination (continued) (b) EBEO(E)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions EBEGINEEWIE (&)
(continued)
Asset acquisitions BEWE

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to investment properties which are
subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is
then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise
to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at
fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must
meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in the
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October
2010).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M wRME

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Business combination (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired

and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

120  MILLION STARS HOLDINGS LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2022

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition
date, except for leases for which (a) the lease
term ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low value.
Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

3(b).EXSETBEER (&)
(b) EBEB/H(E)
HEA G S E N E (4F)
RO (E)

RIKEEBE - PRl Bl B nl & &
KETERENREREQFENE

HEA T IR B BRI

EXHBREELRERERE
BANZHERENEERRED
RIRIEE S et ERE 1258 Fr
BH REBGFERIF195%
[MEBWRH ] R RETE

B UL T A B0 A ER RS
AL ARNBENBATA
HABREBET ARD S
AN KL M E] LA AR E
ARty SERONRLBE TR
WEHBAREEBMBREE
AIE2%E8(R TXEF K

A—‘\->:

R

BIEE B Y 53R E £ R H 55
[FHEREZIERBEEREK
IHREEB | DEARELE
ZEE(RHEMRR) BIEZE
BlstE &

HERBZRANGESENRCE
ERBBM B HRELERF165)
MR EMER N E - B
BHENKERYPANES
HEATEERSN : (a) R
BRHBEA12EARNER X
OHEEEEEER - EREE

RMERNGTE - AIEHFEIN
[ BR BT 35 15 B A S F Y

HERK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Business combination (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

122

(b) Business combination (continued)

(c)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3(b). E A& BUOE (&)
(continued)
(¢) Goodwill (continued) (c) BHE(E)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a
cash-generating unit within a group of cash-generating
units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured
on the basis of the relative values of the operation (or
the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of associates is described below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

124

(d)

Investments in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is or the portion so
classified is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5.
Any retained portion of an investment in an associate
that has not been classified as held for sale continues
to be accounted for using the equity method. Where
the associate uses accounting policies that differ from
those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments have
been made to conform the associate’s accounting
policies to those of the Group. Under the equity
method, investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in
net assets of the associate other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group's share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of value-in-use or fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
associate and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in
the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

126

(e)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for
sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is
highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling
interest in the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an
investment, in an associate, the investment or the
portion of the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when the
investment (or a portion of the investment) is classified
as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell which continue to be measured in accordance with
the accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3(b). B A &5 EE (&)
(continued)
(H Revenue from contracts with customers N EFEHRWA

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
goods or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

128

(f)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

Revenue from provision of internet advertising agency
services, promotion of mobile game, and related
services are recognised over the period in which the
services are performed representing the entity’s right
to consideration for the services performed to date.

Revenue from performance based advertisements is
recognised on a per-click basis when the users click on
the content for pay for click advertisements, or on a
per-display basis, when the advertising contents are
displayed to users for pay for instant display
advertisements.

Revenue from cryptocurrency mining is recognised
when the Group's performance obligations as a miner
has been rendered.

Revenue from cryptocurrency hosting is recognised
when the services has been undertaken by the Group.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the
Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
goods or service before that goods or service is
transferred to a customer.

MILLION STARS HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2022

3(b). E RS (#)

)

EFEHNWA ()

BHREEASERE BFF KA
RE(KIHPRESH)  MERT
FPHEZEERIRBHEIE

HERAOEBNEGNEERED
BERFE

REBREEARKLZS -

KERFEEBHBESRERS - #
& F i AR B RS 2 WA R £ 7%
FRGHEER  RREEHLCS
E BT ARSI EARFER) o

KEMREBEEWARBFHENE
BEEABTREZBRHBEELELRH
FREANEERESNEZES
AR IR IRE R ERER o

MEEBRBRARNEEIESK
BEREITRIRE TR#ER

MEEBEEBRARNEEEETT
% LIRSS HERR o

ZAABEREA

EX—HREATFREHAE MR
B AREETHAZZEERSR
RRBEEEERIRBAT ZELH
REAAKRERZRFEA) S LEH
H—AREZFEmKRS (AR
BAREA) -

HASEERNETEFERE MRS
Z ARSI E Em iR - RIAK
BARFEA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified goods or
service by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified goods or service provided by
another party before that goods or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.
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3(b). SIGNIFICA AC&OUNTING POLICIES

130

(continued)

(h) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of offices that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.
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3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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3(b).SIGNIFICAN ACéOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

132

(h)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

134

(i)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group's interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3(b). E A& BUOE (&)
(continued)
(i) Foreign currencies (continued) (i (&)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M wRME

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

136

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and
when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in
the liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

0

Share-based payments
Equity settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payments reserve. For share options that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

When shares granted are vested, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments reserve
will be transferred to share premium.
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3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

138

0

(m)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the entity
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or
services quality for recognition as assets).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3(b). E KSR (&)

(m) Taxation (continued)

(m) %R (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

140

(m) Taxation (continued)

(n)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired.
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3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

142

(p)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal or value-in-use. In assessing value-in-
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3(b). E KSR (&)
(continued)
(p) Impairment on property, plant and equipment, P) VX BMERRKRE FHEEER

right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value-in-use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

144

(q) Cryptocurrency

(r)

Cryptocurrency is recognised as intangible assets with
indefinite useful life in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group adopts the cost model to
account for its cryptocurrency which is initially
measured at cost, deemed to be the fair value upon
receipt, less impairment losses, if any.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of
cryptocurrency are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the cryptocurrency, calculated using the
weighted average method, and are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which the cryptocurrency are
disposed of or utilised.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Financial Instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

146

(r)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, deposits, advance
payments to suppliers included in prepayments, loan
receivables, other receivables, bank and cash balances
and pledged bank deposits) which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using the probability of default, loss given
default and the exposure at default with reference to
the historical data of the market of the debtors’
industry. The loss allowance based on past due status
is further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3(b). EAEHKE (@)
(continued)
(r) Financial Instruments (continued) (N TETEE)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment ARRE B M EERFE ST
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued) JHEFE 2B A E R E ()

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT__FXA=THIFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

148

r)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforementioned, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a debt instrument to have
low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

r)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable:

when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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(r) Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HZE_—F

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over one to two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for
the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount
at the reporting date. The Group uses a practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables
using a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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3(b). SIGNIFICANT/ACéOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

152

r)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)

MILLION STARS HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for
a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting date that the
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

r)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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(continued)

r)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All the Group’s financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MY EE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—T=—FNA=1+HILFE

3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statement of financial position comprise cash on hand
and at banks with a maturity of three months or less.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on
hand and at banks as defined above.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the group;

(2) has significant influence over the group;

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the group or the group’s
parent.
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3(b).SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

156

(continued)

(u)

Related parties (continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1)

@)

@)

()

(5)

(6)

@)

8)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i) above.

A person identified in (i)(1) above has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HZE_—F

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3(b), the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be